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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
0 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended
OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the Transition Period from January 1, 2013 to March 31, 2013
Commission File No. 000-54621

ORGANOVO HOLDINGS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaefr)

Delaware 27-1488943
(State of incorporation) (IRS Employer Identification No.)
6275 Nancy Ridge Drive, Suite 11 92121
San Diego, CA (Zip code)

(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area codeB58-550-9994

Securities registered pursuant to section 12(g) difie Act:

Title of each class
Common Stock, $0.001 par value

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405coBéturities Act.  Yed] No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[d No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €l filed all reports required to be filed by Sewcti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordiach shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastia@s. Yes[x] No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lnasmstted electronically and posted on its corpokatb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted auntsio Rule 405 of RegulationSduring the preceding 12 months (or for such shrqrerioc
that the registrant was required to submit and pash files). YeskX No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinqulers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i¢ contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgeléfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 11l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K1

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlearge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchangg. A

Large accelerated file [ Accelerated file| O
Non-accelerated file Smaller reporting compar I
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxgje Act). YesO No

The aggregate market value of the voting commocksteld by non-affiliates based on the closinglsjaice on September 28, 2012, the
last trading day of the registrant’s second fispadrter, was $50,421,992. For purposes of this etatipn only, all executive officers, directors
and 10% or greater stockholders have been deerfikated.

The number of outstanding shares of the regi¢s common stock, as of May 1, 2013 was 64,686,



Documents incorporated by referereeCertain information required for Part Ill of thisport is incorporated herein by reference to the
proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of@bmpany’s shareholders, expected to be filed witl2id days of the end of our transition
period.




Table of Contents

Organovo Holdings, Inc.
Transition Report on Form 10-K
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2013

Table of Contents

Important Information Regarding Forwi-Looking Statement

PART |

Iltem 1.
Item 1A.
Item 1B.
Iltem 2.
Iltem 3.
Item 4.

PART Il

Item 5.
Iltem 6.
Item 7.
Item 7A.
Iltem 8.
Item 9.
Item 9A.
Item 9B.

PART IlI

Item 10.
Item 11.
Iltem 12.
Item 13.
Item 14.

PART IV
Item 15.

Business

Risk Factors

Unresolved Staff Commen
Properties

Legal Proceeding

Mine Safety Disclosure

Market for Registra’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters asddsPurchases of Equity Securil
Selected Financial Da

Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &®esults of Operatior

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk

Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemebiaty

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants @ouing and Financial Disclosu

Controls and Procedur

Other Informatior

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govaos

Executive Compensatic

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Mahagement and Related Stockholders Ma
Certain Relationships and Related Transactionsarettor Independenc

Principal Accountant Fees and Servi

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedi

U
E
[l I

10
22
22
22
22

23
25
25
36
F-1
37
37
37

38
38
38
38
38

39



Table of Contents

Important Information Regarding Forward-Looking Sta tements

This Transition Report on Form 10-K contains fordedmoking statements that relate to anticipatedriievents, future developments, future
results of operations or future financial perforimanThese forward-looking statements include, beinat limited to, statements relating to our
ability to raise sufficient capital to finance quianned operations, market acceptance of our téagy@nd product offerings, our ability to
attract and retain key personnel, our ability totgct our intellectual property, and our abilitydevelop commercially viable products with our
technology. In some cases, you can identify forwao#ting statements by terminology such as “mawyidght,” “will,” “should,” “intends,”
“expects,” “plans,” “goals,” “projects,” “anticipas,” “assumes,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predittypotential,” or “continue” or the negative
of these terms or other comparable terminology.

” o« LTS ” o«

These forward-looking statements involve substhktiawn and unknown risks, uncertainties and othetors which may cause our (or our
industry’s) actual results, levels of activity arformance to be materially different from any fa@twesults, levels of activity or performance
expressed or implied by these forwdodking statements. The most significant of théslesr uncertainties and other factors are desciibéte
“Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and lpsia of Financial Condition and Results of Opearas” sections of this Transitional
Report.

We cannot guarantee future results, levels of @gtor performance. You should not place unduearele on these forward-looking statements
which speak only as of the date that they were miBldese cautionary statements should be consiadatkdny written or oral forward-looking
statements that we may issue in the future.

Except as required by applicable law, includinggbkeurities laws of the United States, we do nieind to update any of the forward-looking
statements to conform these statements to reftdghlresults, later events or circumstances oeftect the occurrence of unanticipated events

1
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PART |

Item 1. Business.
Change in Fiscal Year End

On March 31, 2013, the board of directors of Organidoldings, Inc. (the “Company”) approved a chairgeur fiscal year end from
December 31st to March 31st. As a result of thange, we are filing this Transition Report on FA®AK for the three-month transition period
ended March 31, 2013. References to any of ouriqueviscal years mean the fiscal years ending ecenber 31st.

Overview

We are developing and commercializing functionahhn tissues that can be employed in drug discoaedydevelopment, biological research,
and as therapeutic implants for the treatment ofaiped or degenerating tissues and organs. We itddénttoduce a paradigm shift in the
approach to the generation of three-dimensionaldmutissues, by utilizing our platform technologycteate human tissue constructs in 3D tha
have the potential to replicate native human bipl&ye can improve on previous technologies by mgpaway from monolayer 2D cell
cultures and by enabling all or part of the tisswescreate to be constructed solely of cells. Wiebe our demonstrated expertise in printing
various fully cellular human tissues as disclosedeer-reviewed scientific publications providestrang foundation upon which other tissues
can be built to replicate human biology and humaeake. We believe that our broad and exclusivereential rights to patented and patent-
pending 3D bioprinting technology, combined wittegsgths in engineering and biology, put us in aaigosition to provide a wide array of
products for use in research, drug discovery agdrrerative medicine therapies.

Our foundational proprietary technology derivesriresearch led by Dr. Gabor Forgacs, the Georgért¢yard Professor of Biological
Physics at the University of Missouri. We have aduf portfolio of intellectual property rights coirey principles, enabling instrumentation
applications and methods of cell-based printingluiding exclusive licenses to certain patentedatdnt pending technologies from the
University of Missouri-Columbia, Clemson Universignd Becton Dickinson, and outright ownership atiepts and pending patent
applications. We believe that our portfolio of ifeetual property rights provides a strong and dsifele market position for our
commercialization of 3D bioprinting technology.

We believe that we have the potential to build aradntain a sustainable business by leveraging o technology platform across a variet
applications. We have entered into multiple collaltive research agreements with pharmaceuticabcatipns and academic medical centers.
We have also secured federal grants, including ISBusiness Innovation Research grants to suppertifivelopment of our technology. The
Company developed the NovoGen MMX Bioprinter™ (firat-generation 3D bioprinter) less than two yeafter commencing operations. We
were selected by MIT’s Technology Review magazimemg the Most Innovative Companies of 2012 andioy Magazine as one of the Most
Audacious Companies in 2013. We believe these catp@achievements provide strong validation forabmercial viability of our
technology.

Our Platform Technology

Our platform technology is centered around multgilebioprinting technologies utilizing our bioprimg instrument, the NovoGen MMX
Bioprinter™. Our 3D bioprinting technologies enahlwide array of tissue compositions and architestto be created, using combinations of
cellular ‘bio-ink’ (building blocks comprised sojedf cells), hydrogel (building blocks comprisedddcompatible gels), or hybrid ‘bio-

ink’ (building blocks comprised of a mixture of tend material such as hydrogel). A key distiniing feature of our bioprinting platform is
the ability to generate three-dimensional conssrtitat have all or some of their components coradrentirely of cells. The fully-cellular
feature of our technology enables architecturatly @mpositionally defined functional human tissteebe generated fam vitro use in drug
discovery and
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development to potentially replicate the functiob@alogy of native human tissue. Furthermore, fakflular constructs may offer specific
advantages for regenerative medicine applicatidmsrgvbioactive cells are required and three-dinoer@siconfiguration is necessary, such as
augmenting or replacing functional mass in tisareborgans that have sustained acute or chroniagiam

We intend to deliver the following products to tharket:

* Three-dimensional models of human tissue for @iilan in traditional absorption, distribution, mietdism, excretion (ADME) /
toxicology (TOX) / and drug metabolism and pharniégetics (DMPK) testing in drug developme

* Specific models of human biology or pathophysioldgythe form of three-dimensional human tissuesuse in drug discovery and
development

* Three-dimensional human tissues for use as thetiapegenerative medicine products, such as blesseis for bypass grafting, nerve
grafts for nerve damage repair and regenerativehpatfor treatment of heart disee

Our Market Opportunity

We believe that our bioprinting technology is urgtyupositioned to provide functional human tissfegsuse in drug discovery and
development, biological research, and as therapgufilants for the treatment of damaged or degd¢ingrargans.

There are multiple addressable markets for oumtglolgy platform:

1)

2)

3)

Specialized Models for Drug Discovery and Devgimnent: The NovoGen MMX Bioprinter™ can produce highly sipéized
functional human tissues that can be utilized t@ehspecific tissue physiology or pathophysiolo@yr bioprinting technology has
demonstrated the ability to create human bloodelesmstructs, and to create fully human tissueéainimg microvascular
structures. These capabilities are anticipateddaden the scope and scale of 3D tissues thatecgererated, and to facilitate the
development of disease models in such areas a®easdular disease, oncology, and fibro

Biological Research ToolsAbsorption, distribution, metabolism, excretion (KME) testing is used to determine which factors
enhance or inhibit how a potential drug compourathes the blood stream. Distribution of a compataribe affected by binding
to plasma proteins; age, genetics, and other factm influence metabolism of a compound; and thsgmce of certain disease
states can have effects on excretion of a compddady companies perform ADME studies utilizing wars cell-based assays or
automated bioanalytical techniques. Drug metabotisch pharmacokinetics (DMPK) testing is a subs&@ME. Determining the
DMPK properties of a drug helps the drug develdpamderstand its safety and efficacy. Toxicolo§@X) testing is a further
requirement to determine the detrimental effecta pérticular drug on specific tissues. We beliiad the NovoGen MMX
Bioprinter™ is positioned to deliver highly differéated products for use in traditional cell-bag&dME / TOX / DMPK studies.
Products in this arena may replace or complemaditional cell based assays that typically emplomary hepatocytes, intestinal
cell lines, renal epithelial cells and cell linesgn in a traditional two-dimensional format. Impontly, the combination of tissue-
like three-dimensionality and human cellular comgrus is believed to provide an advantage over nonam animal systems
toward predictingn vivohuman outcome:

Regenerative Medicine The field of regenerative medicine is advancingnaidtiple strategic approaches in development and
practice, including cell therapies and scaffoldesbproducts (+/- cells). The architectural precisand flexibility of our technology
may facilitate the optimization, development, atidical use of three-dimensional tissue construaigortantly, our technology
offers a ne>-generation strategy whereby th-dimensional structures can be generated withot

3
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use of scaffolding or biomaterial components. Thienate goal is to enable fully cellular construtishe generated in a
configuration compatible with surgical modes ofidaly, thereby enabling restoration of signific&mctional mass to a damaged
tissue or orgar

We believe that our technology can capitalize siategic partnerships, on additional market opputies in the provision of enabling tools -
drug discovery and development as well as the desgoand development of therapeutic implants thign@ent or replace damaged tissues anc
organs. We believe there are multiple short ang-kenm revenue opportunities for us in these aieakjding direct sales of 3D human tissue
constructs for drug screening and developmentsicey fees for commercial access to our technolagg,royalties from product enablement,
particularly in the area of therapeutic productsrémenerative medicine.

Background on Bioprinting

The formation of ‘bio-ink’, the cell-based buildifdocks that can be dispensed by our bioprintées®n the demonstrated principle that
groups of individual cells will self-assemble tongeate aggregates, through the actions of celhsanproteins that bind to each other and form
junctions between cells. Furthermore, if two or emoompatible se-assembled aggregates are placed in close proxiuriter the proper
conditions they will fuse to generate larger, mooenplex structures via physical properties analsgouhose that drive fusion of liquid
droplets. The concept of tissue liquidity origirthte studies of developmental biology, where it waged that developing tissues have liquid-
like properties that enable individual cellular qoonents to pattern each other, migrate, organimbdéferentiate. As development progresses
tissues transition from a dynamic viscous liquateto a more static semi-solid state, largelyadrilsy the compartmentalized organization of
cellular components and production within the orgedh tissue of extracellular matrix proteins thatyide the mature tissue with the
biomechanical properties required for tissue spefithction.

Our results demonstrate sel§sembly and tissue liquidity using cellular aggteg generated from developing chicken heart tishmving the
two adjacent aggregates will fuse over time ancegpete a larger cellular structure. This basic beliaan be leveraged to form more complex
structures whereby aggregates are arranged incifisggeometry that can recapitulate shapes anditactures commonly found in tissues and
organs, including tubes and multi-layered structure

Further analysis shows that the phenomenon of ggtgdusion in embryonic tissue can be extendedltdt-derived cultured mammalian cel
as demonstrated by the fusion of adult hamsteryosithelial cell aggregates to form toroid (rirsgjuctures when placed into that geometry
and held for about 120 hours.

Our Novogen MMX Bioprinter™

Our NovoGen MMX Bioprinter™ is an automated dewicat enables the fabrication of three-dimensio88B) (iving tissues comprised of
mammalian cells. A custom graphic user interfaceljGacilitates the 3D design and execution of giithat direct precision movement of the
dispensing heads to deposit cellular building béo€kio-ink’) or supporting hydrogel. The unit fiasily into a standard biosafety cabinet,
eliminating the need to purchase ancillary equipnoemake facility modifications to maintain stésilof bioprinted tissues during the printing
process. The speed and precision of this instruereaibles the production of small-scale tissue nsoideln vitro use in drug discovery and
development. Features of the first-generation umsént include two dispensing heads, temperaturgapautomatic calibration, and a custom
software interface for integrated experimental giesind instrument control.

The NovoGen MMX Bioprinter™ went from in-licensiragd initial design to commercial production in léssn two years.

The first step in bioprinting is preparation of thie-ink aggregates, which are typically generatesbherical or cylindrical format. Bio-ink can
be generated from a wide variety of cell typesluding cell lines, primary cells,

4
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stromal cells, epithelial cells, endothelial cetlad progenitor cells. Once formed, the bio-inkding blocks are loaded into the bioprinter,
which then dispenses them layer by layer in thergery specified by the user, with a bio-inert hyglrbserving as an optional physical suppor
for the bioprinted tissue as well as occupying aegative space included in the design.

The NovoGen MMX Bioprinter™ has proved to be a pduleenabling tool for the design, optimization dafabrication of viable functional
human tissues, based on our internal product desyand development efforts as well as the expegi@fi our corporate partners and
customers. Continuing use of the NovoGen MMX Bint®i™ in the pursuit of multiple drug discovery ahdrapeutic applications has
provided key insights that will be utilized in theolution of the bioprinter platform. We believatipurpose-driven improvements and added
product features, combined with new capabilitiedl, emhance our ability to deliver commercially kia outputs for corporate partners in drug
development and implantable therapeutics.

The NovoGen MMX Bioprinter has won the following amls and accolades:
e 2010 International Society for Biofabrication Mew®t- Special Awarc
e 2010 TIME Magazin¢50 Best Inventions of 20”
* 2011 Australian Engineering Innovation Award, spwesd by the Australian governme

In 2011, 2012 and 2013 we provided NovoGen MMX Biiers™ for use by the following institutions, angpothers, for research purposes:
Harvard Medical School, Wake Forest University, ¢frtiCancer Institute at Oregon Health & Sciencevdrsiity (“OHSU”) and the Sanford
Consortium for Regenerative Medicine (“SCRM”). TBRERM is an institution that opened in November,2@bmprised of faculty from the
Salk Institute, The Scripps Research Institute thiversity of California, San Diego, Sanford-Buanh Medical Research Institute, and La
Jolla Allergy and Immunology Institute. We belietat the use of our bioprinting platform by majesearch institutions will increase the
understanding of the technological and researaleval the platform, ultimately creating future oppities for intellectual property licensing.

Specific Applications for Functional Human Tissues

Our bioprinting technology and surrounding intelled property and commercial rights serve as d@iatfor product generation across
multiple markets that employ cell and tissue-bgmediucts and services. The core capability of eanhology is the production of human
tissues with the potential to recapitulate humarolgly. Once generated, theésevivo-like human tissues may be suitable for a variety of
applications such as research tools, specializetkta®f tissue pathobiology, and implantable theutips for tissue engineering and
regenerative medicine. Importantly, the basic fadiion and maturation protocols that generate fanat micro-scale tissues for vitro use

will serve as a foundation for the design and maciufre of larger-scale tissues intended for therépease to augment or replace damaged or
degenerating organs.

Collaborative Agreements

In December 2010, we entered into a CollaboratieseRrch Agreement with Pfizer, Inc.Rfizer ") to develop tissue based drug discovery
assays in two therapeutic areas utilizing our Naso®IMX Bioprinter™ technology. We disclosed in 2ah2at we had delivered constructs to
Pfizer for internal evaluation as partial complatwf the collaboration agreement; we additionallyddelivered a study report to complete the
scope of work in the original collaboration agreem€onstructs delivered by Organovo are currdmiyng evaluated in the collaborator’s
laboratory, and we anticipate that an additionaéament or agreements will be arrived at to utilzganovo tissues in its future research
efforts, although we can give no assurance thatdéuagreements will be secured.

In October 2011, we entered into a Research Agreewi¢h United Therapeutics CorporationUWhither ”) to establish and conduct a researct
program to discover treatments for pulmonary hygresion using our NovoGen MMX Bioprinter™ technolpgsich remains in effect until
the later of 30 months from its commencement or
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our completion of the contracted research. We Ipawgressed the work on this agreement accorditigetoesearch plan. In November 2012
executed an additional agreement with United Thetips describing additional research scope anddging for additional collaborative
research funding, in an expansion of the origigaéament from October 2011.

In January 2013, we entered into a collaboratioeegent with the Knight Cancer Institute at Orefi@alth & Science University ©OHSU
"), a national leader in translational oncologye@sh, to develop more clinically predictive inrgithree dimensional cancer models with the
goal to advance discovery of novel cancer therageut

Competition

We are subject to significant competition from phaceutical, biotechnology, and diagnostic compamieademic and research institutions;
and government or other publicly-funded agencias déine pursuing the development of research towigteerapeutic products that otherwise
address the needs of our potential customers. \levbaur future success will depend, in large pamtour ability to maintain a competitive
position in our field. Biopharmaceutical technolegjhave undergone and are expected to continugltrgp rapid and significant change. We
or our competitors may make rapid technologicakflgyments which may cause our research tools capkeatic products to become obsolete
before we recover the expenses incurred. The inttimh of less expensive or more effective theréipeliscovery and development
technologies, including technologies that may belated to our field, may also make our technollegg valuable or obsolete. We may not be
able to make the necessary enhancements to ounolegies or research tools to compete successkitlynewly emerging technologies. The
failure to maintain a competitive position in thefharmaceutical field may result in decreasedmaes.

We are a platform technology company dedicatetig¢alevelopment and production of functional hunisgsues that service the drug
development, biological research, and regeneratiegicine industries. To our knowledge, there arether companies with a similar “pure
play” focus on a 3D tissue platform technology @rketed products.

Set forth below is a discussion of competitive dastfor each of the broad markets in which we idtenutilize our technology:

1.) Specialized Models for Drug Discovery and Developmé& This aspect of our business is driven by leveragimgtechnology as a
high-end partnered service that enables a custtmtiscover or optimally formulate a pharmacologgioduct that delivers a specific
therapeutic effect, or avoids a particular sidedtffln addition to revenue generated from theiéggoduction work, additional
revenues are possible in the form of up-front lgzefees, milestone payments, knbow payments, and royalties. We can provide
customer access to tissues as a service or canqeathd supply the tissues to customers; bothroptice designed to generate
continuing revenue. Competition in this area arisamly from two sources, traditional cell-baseditro culture approaches and
traditional in vivoanimal models and testin

We believe that an important factor distinguishing approach from that of our competitors is odlitgtio build models that are
composed of human cells and have a 3D tissue-tikéiguration (i.e., able to generate results thatret subject to inherent
limitations of 2D monolayer culture). We acknowlegyowever, that there are some areas of researgfhfch the existing methods
(2D cell culture and/or animal studies) are adegjaad 30n vitro human tissues are not sufficiently advantageous.

2.) Biological Research ToolsWe intend to employ our technology to provide amawaof broadly-applicable enabling tools and assays
to the drug research markets. Examples of prodndtés segment of the business include futurelpipeefforts in the development
of the NovoGen MMX Bioprinter™ instrument and huniasue models that service the ADME/TOX/DMPK maskas alternatives
or supplements to traditional c-based assays and animal stuc

6
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Competition in the bioprinter arena has been lithttedate. We believe that we have a first to maakigantage in being the first and
only company to leverage a purely cellular biopnigtsystem commercially, which does not rely onghesence of foreign, non-
native polymer in the final tissue constructs. S@oademic groups have internally created inkjeptiing systems, but these
systems have not been developed commercially toated we believe they are unlikely to be as effedti the generation of larger-
scale 3D tissues. Furthermore, commercializatioteatfain inkjet based technologies will requiretaierintellectual property rights.

3.) Regenerative Medicine:This aspect of our business involves applicatioowf3D bioprinting technology to generate humasues
suitable for implantation in vivo to augment orleege damaged or degenerating tissues. The magdrihese efforts will be
undertaken as partnered projects with leading feeric companies seeking to develop a tissue eagimge/ regenerative medicine
product for a specific application, or developedusyalone. Near-term revenues would come fromuhdifg of development work
and, in some cases, licensing fees for access tplatfiorm technologies. We expect longer-term nexes may arise from shared
profits and royalties or other forms of income freatcessful clinical and commercial developmeriheftissue products. There are
many companies pursuing the discovery, developnagat commercialization of tissue-engineered pragifarta variety of
applications, including but not limited to Organaogsis, Advanced BioHealing (recently acquired bye3hTengion, Genzyme (a
subsidiary of Sanofi), HumaCyte and Cytograft Tes&ingineering. These companies uniquely repres#anfal competition for us
while also being candidates for potential partnEos.any tissue-engineered / regenerative medpmioduct where three-
dimensionality is desired, our platform has a ugsiquility to enable generation of prototypes, ojtation of prototypes and
protocols, and production of the tiss

Intellectual Property

Our success depends in large part on our abilipbtain and enforce patents, maintain protectiomaafe secrets and operate without infringing
the proprietary rights of third parties. We holclesive licenses to four U.S. patents, three UaSemqt applications and multiple corresponding
international patent applications. We have filedeseU.S. patent applications and correspondingriaténal patent applications regarding our
technology and its various uses in areas of tisse@ion and utilization in drug discovery, inclogifilings for specific tissue types.

In March 2009, we obtained a world-wide exclusicemnse to a suite of intellectual property ownedh®/University of Missouri-Columbia (*
MU ”) and the Medical University of South Carolina eowng the following two patents:

» “SeltAssembling Cell Aggregates and Methods of Makingi&eered Tissue Using the S&” US 10/590,446 and 8,241,9(

» “Self-Assembling Multicellular Bodies and MethodsRroducing a Three-Dimensional Biological Struetutsing the Same”
PCT/US 2009/48 and US 8,143,0!

In March 2010, we licensed additional intellectpadperty from MU covering the composition and metlod manufacture of a nerve conduit.
Dr. Gabor Forgacs is one of our Founders and tiguerinventor of all of these works (thébrgacs Intellectual Property”). The Forgacs
Intellectual Property provides us with intellectpabperty rights to create cellular aggregatesise cellular aggregates to create engineered
tissue, and to employ cellular aggregates to creagineered tissue with no scaffold present. Ttedl@ctual property rights derived from the
Forgacs Intellectual Property also enables usiliaaibur NovoGen MMX Bioprinter™ to create engine@ tissues, and provides us with ric
to specific compositions with utility in the creati of nerve conduit.

The Forgacs Intellectual Property is the resultesrs of research by Dr. Gabor Forgacs, the Gedr§éneyard Professor of Biophysics at the
University of Missouri-Columbia and his collabors@nd research teams. Dr. Forgacs is a sougheajbert in biofabrication with a long
record of peer-reviewed publications. The Forgatsllectual Property derives from work performedtie labs of Dr. Forgacs and his
collaborators,
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including the work performed under a $5,000,00nEeus in Biological Research grant that Dr. Fosgand his collaborators received from
National Science Foundatic

Under our agreements we also hold the exclusiemsie to the following two patents as well as futumetinuation patents derived from the
same applications:

» “Self-Assembling Multicellular Bodies and MethodsRyroducing a Three-Dimensional Biological Struetutsing the Same” (US
8,143,055), which provides us with intellectual peaty rights to create cellular aggregates, tocediellar aggregates to create
engineered tissue, and to employ cellular aggredatereate engineered tissue with no scaffoldgorte

» “Self-Assembling Cell Aggregates and Methods of MgkeEngineered Tissue Using the Same” (US 8,24),%@&ich provides us
with intellectual property rights in the creatiohemgineered tissu:

Under our license arrangements, we have the rigbtiblicense the Forgacs Intellectual PropertythadCURF Patent. We also have full
control and authority over the development and cenaialization of any licensed products, includitigical trials, manufacturing, marketing,
and regulatory filings. We were required to subamitl have submitted plans for commercializationliakahnologies and are required to make
efforts to pursue commercial development of thénetogy. We are required to make payments on anarrasis after commercialization to
maintain the license rights.

Further, we will be required to make pass throuagynpents for sublicenses of the Forgacs Intelled®uaperty and the CURF Patent based on
the license fees or royalty payments we receivadtition, following commercialization, we are réga to make ongoing royalty payments
equal to a low single digit percentage of net safdbe licensed products.

In May 2011, we obtained an exclusive license pat@nt entitled “Ink Jet Printing of Viable Cell@JS 7,051,654) from the Clemson
University Research FoundationQURF Patent”). The CURF Patent provides us with the intelletforoperty rights to methods of using ink-
jet printer technology to dispense cells, and &at¥ matrices of bioprinted cells on gel mater

In May 2012, the Intellectual Property Office oétbinited Kingdom issued us a patent (GB24788MgdtiMultilayered Vascular Tubes.”
This is our first issued patent and representssieance of a patent from our first patent apgbeatwhich was submitted in May 2010. The
original patent application continues to be unéeiaw at the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office aalfipfe other jurisdictions.

In November 2012, Hong Kong patent HK1159682 wased to us for a similar matter.

In February 2013, another patent, with additiotaihes directed to our vascular tube inventions, isaged in the United Kingdom as patent
GB2489081.

Also in February of 2013, we purchased the exchtusights to a patent titled “Perfusion BioreactimsCulturing Cells” (US 7,767,446 as well
as related foreign patents) from Becton Dickinsoed @ompany. This patent represents the acquisifitmoreactor technology for the support
of our 3D tissues for use in drug discovery andetigyment. No future royalties or milestone paymeamésowed to Becton Dickinson and
Company for these patents.

We currently have U.S. patent applications pentiingrotect our proprietary methods processes ampositions and have also filed, and
intend to file, corresponding foreign patent apgdiicns. We believe that protection of the proprietaature of our products and technologies is
essential to our business. Accordingly, we haveptetband will continue a vigorous program to seeum@ maintain protection of our
intellectual property. Under this program, we irtte:a file patent applications with respect to naeehnology, and improvements thereof, that
are important to our business. We also will corgitmrely upon trade secrets, unpatented know-bhowtjnuing technological innovation and
the pursuit of licensing opportunities to developl anaintain our
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competitive position. There can be no assurandeothars will not independently develop substahtiafuivalent proprietary technology or
that we can meaningfully protect our proprietargifon.

Regulatory Considerations

We are not aware of any current FDA regulatory inepients for sales or use of research tools, ssitfiogrinters for research and
development. All human cells utilized in our resaand, ultimately in our bioprinted tissue produeire collected in compliance with the
FDA's guidance for Current Good Tissue PracticeST@). However, pharmaceutical industry corporattauers with whom we will enter
into collaboration arrangements will face regulpt@view of the research data they generate usingechnology platform and research tools.
Good Laboratory Practice (GLP) data is requirethendevelopment of any human therapeutic, andemimology platform has been designed
to support compliance with GLP, although no indejgem certification has been performed to date tdion this compliance. All product
contact surfaces are sterilizable or disposablé? Ghnsiderations around areas such as data iytegeithe sole responsibility of our
collaborators without regard to specifics of thee@rch tool used.

Therapeutic tissues and other regenerative medicogucts are subject to an extensive, lengthyusre@rtain regulatory approval process by
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and pamable agencies in other countries. The regulatiorew products is extensive, and the
required process of laboratory testing and humadiiess is lengthy and expensive. The resource ima&st necessary to meet the requirements
of these regulations will fall on our collaboratipgrtners, or may be shared with us, to the ettetitwe are developing proprietary products
that are the result of a collaboration effort. Tegource investment of time, staff and expensatisfg these regulations will fall on us to the
extent we are developing proprietary products anosen. We may not be able to obtain FDA approvatsitiose products in a timely manner,
or at all. We may encounter significant delays»aressive costs in our efforts to secure necesggmosals or licenses. Even if we obtain FDA
regulatory approvals, the FDA extensively regulatesufacturing, labeling, distributing, marketipgpmotion and advertising after product
approval. Moreover, several of our product develepnhareas may involve relatively new technology ade not been the subject of exten:
product testing in humans. The regulatory requimr@sgoverning these products and related clinioatgdures remain uncertain and the
products themselves may be subject to substaetisdw by the FDA and/or foreign governmental retpriaauthorities that could prevent or
delay approval of these products and proceduregulR®ry requirements ultimately imposed on oudpiais could limit our ability to test,
manufacture and, ultimately, commercialize our pigid and thereby could adversely affect our finr@nmbndition and results of operations.

As constructs move into clinical and commerciatisgs, full compliance with the FDA’s CGTP (Currégabod Tissue Practices) and CGMP
(Current Good Manufacturing Practices) guidelindklve required. Suitable design and documentaforelinical use of the bioprinter will be
a part of future phases of our NovoGen MMX Biopeimit design programs.

Employees

We currently have thirty-seven employees, of whhirtyt-one are employed full time. We also engagescttants and temporary employees
from time to time to provide services that relat@ur bioprinting business and technology as wefoa general administrative and accounting
services.

Available Information

We are subject to the reporting requirements oStbeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Ewchange Act”). Reports filed with the
SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act, including anandlquarterly reports, and other reports we fi, loe inspected and copied at the public
reference facilities maintained by the SEC at 1®&lrEet, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Investoryg pi#tain information on the operation of
the public reference room by calling the SEC abD0-8EC-0330. Investors can request copies of tiesements upon payment of a
duplicating fee by writing to the SEC. The repavtsfile with the SEC are also available on the SB@&bsite ( http://www.sec.qdv
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

Investment in our common stock involves a substaaigigree of risk and should be regarded as spéivelaAs a result, the purchase of «
common stock should be considered only by pershosan reasonably afford to lose their entire inweent. Before you elect to purchase our
common stock, you should carefully consider theaisd uncertainties described below in additiothte other information incorporated here
by reference. Additional risks and uncertaintiesvbich we are unaware or which we currently beliave immaterial could also materially
adversely affect our business, financial conditomesults of operations. In any case, the tradimige of our common stock could decline, anc
you could lose all or part of your investme

Risks related to our Business and our Industry
We have a limited operating history and a historfyaperating losses, and expect to incur significaadditional operating losses.

We were incorporated in 2007, opened our labordadn San Diego, California in January 2009, angtlanly a limited operating history.
Therefore, there is limited historical financialarmation upon which to base an evaluation of arfggmance and future prospects. Our future
prospects must be considered in light of the uaa#ies, risks, expenses, and difficulties freglyeamcountered by companies in their early
stages of operations and competing in new and lyag&l/eloping technology areas. We have genergtedating losses since we began
operations, including $4.0 million for the threemttts ended March 31, 2013 and $9.3 million, $2.lioniand $1.2 million for the years enc
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelpfAgarch 31, 2013, we had incurred cumulative ofpegdosses of $17.7 million and
cumulative net losses totaling $66.4 million. Weeat to incur substantial additional operating ésssver the next several years as our
research, development, and commercial activitiesegse. The amount of future losses and wheneif, @e will achieve profitability are
uncertain. Our ability to generate revenue andeaghprofitability will depend on, among other thénguccessfully developing drug discovery
and biological research tools and products thatremee effective than existing technologies; entgiitto collaborative relationships with
strategic partners; obtaining any necessary regylatpproval for our drug discovery, biologicaleasch and therapeutic tools and products;
entering into successful manufacturing, sales,marketing arrangements; and raising sufficient futedfinance our activities and business
plan. We might not succeed at any of these undegaklf we are unsuccessful at some or all oféhesdertakings, our business, prospects
results of operations will be materially adversatffected.

We will need to secure additional financing to sugpour planned operations.

We will require additional funds for our anticipdteperations. We expect that we will be requiretssoie additional equity or debt securitie!
enter into other commercial arrangements, includalgtionships with corporate and other partneérseture the additional financial resources
to support our development efforts and future ajima. Depending upon market conditions, we maybeosuccessful in raising sufficient
additional capital on a timely basis, or at allwi fail to obtain sufficient additional financingy, enter into relationships with others that
provide additional financial resources, we will batable to develop our technology and productsuwrplanned timeline, or at all, and we n
be required to delay significantly, reduce the gcopor eliminate one or more of our research eeltgpment programs, downsize our general
and administrative infrastructure, or seek altémeatneasures to avoid insolvency, including arramgrets with collaborative partners or others
that may require us to relinquish rights to cert#iour technologies, product candidates or praaduatsuch event, our business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations wolddadversely affected.

We are an early-stage company with an unproven Iesis strategy, and may never achieve profitability.

We are in the early stages of using our proprigpdatform technology to develop and commercialinectional human tissues that can be
employed in drug discovery and development, bidalgiesearch, and as therapeutic
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implants for the treatment of damaged or degenmgraissues and organs. Our success will depend aypoability to enter into additional
collaboration agreements on favorable terms, terdeéhe which drug discovery, biological researct #irerapeutic tools and products can be
successfully developed with our platform technologiytain any necessary regulatory approvals fon $ocls and products, and to select an
appropriate commercialization strategy for thedaotd products we or our collaborators choose teygu If we are not successful in
implementing our development and commercializasiwategies, which are new and unproven, we mayrramrgéeve, maintain or increase
profitability.

We may not be able to correctly estimate our futeggerating expenses, which could lead to cash stadig.

Our operating expenses may fluctuate significaintihe future as a result of a variety of factongny of which are outside of our control.
These factors include:

» the time and resources required to develop our dismpvery, biological research and therapeutitstand products
» the time and cost of obtaining any necessary régyl@approvals

» the cost to create effective sales and marketipgluéties;

» the expenses we incur to maintain and improve @ifgym technology

» the costs to attract and retain personnel wittskiilés required for effective operations; a

» the costs of preparing, filing, prosecuting, defagdand enforcing patent claims and other patdated costs, including litigation
costs and the results of such litigati

In addition, our budgeted expense levels are biamspdrt on our expectations concerning future reresrfrom sales of our tools and products
and from collaborations with third parties. Howewee may not correctly predict the amount or timafduture revenues. In addition, we may
not be able to adjust our operations in a timelynes to compensate for any unexpected shortfallinrevenues. As a result, a significant
shortfall in our planned revenues could have anédiiate and material adverse effect on our busiamedginancial condition.

Our drug discovery, biological research and therajpie tools and products are new and unproven.

Our drug discovery and biological research tool$ gmducts involve new and unproven models andaggbres. We have not proven that our
tools and products will enable us or our collabansto conduct drug discovery and biological resleanore effectively than through the use of
existing technologies. Our success depends on cociahacceptance of our drug discovery and biolalgiesearch tools and products. Even if
we or our collaborators are successful in theigdiiscovery and biological research efforts, wewr collaborators may not be able to discove
or develop commercially viable products therefrdim.date, no one has developed or commercializedhargpeutic or other life science
products based on our drug discovery and biolog&sgarch tools and products. If our drug discoead biological research products and
tools do not assist in the discovery and developroesuch therapeutic or life science products,aurent and potential collaborators may |
confidence in us and our drug discovery and bidalgiesearch tools and products. Our inabilitydbieve and maintain commercial accept:
for our tools and products would materially advirsdfect our business, financial condition andutessof operations.

Our technology, tools and products are subjecthe tisks associated with new and rapidly evolvieghinologies and industries.

Our proprietary tissue creation technology anddsug discovery, biological research and therapeaatits and products are subject to the risks
associated with new, rapidly evolving technologied industries. We may experience unforeseen teghcomplications, unrecognized defe
and limitations in the development and commercadian of our tools and products. These complicaticould materially delay or limit the use
of those tools and products, substantially incrélasenticipated cost of manufacturing them or enéws or our
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collaborators from implementing their drug discgver biological research projects successfullytalia In addition, the process of developing
new technologies, tools and products is compled,ifwe are unable to develop enhancements tonaendfeatures for, our existing tools and
products or acceptable new tools and productskéet pace with technological developments or ingiustandards, our tools and products r
become obsolete, less marketable and less competiti

The commercialization of our drug discovery and higical research tools and products is subject teariety of risks.
The commercialization of our drug discovery anddmaal research tools and products are subjegsks and uncertainties, including:
« failing to provide enhanced results over existimgchhologies
» failing to be cost effective
» failing to receive necessary regulatory approv
» being difficult or impossible to manufacture oraegle scale
» being costly to commercialize or mark
» failing to develop our tools and products before shccessful marketing of similar tools and prosliagt competitors; ¢
» infringing the proprietary rights of third parties competing with superior products marketed bydtpiarties

If any of these risks and uncertainties occur,aftorts to commercialize our drug discovery anddgaal research tools and products may be
unsuccessful, which would harm our business andtsesf operations.

We cannot control our collaborators’ allocation aesources or the amount of time that our collabooas devote to developing our programs
or potential products, which may have a materiahase effect on our business.

Our agreements with our collaborators typicallpwalithem significant discretion in electing whetb@pursue product development, regulatory
approval, manufacturing and marketing of the preslitieey may develop with the help of our technoldde cannot control the amount and
timing of resources our collaborators may devoteuoprograms or potential products. As a resudt,cannot be certain that our collaborators
will choose to develop and commercialize these petdor that we will realize any milestone paymerdgalties and other payments to which
we may become entitled. In addition, if a partiseinivolved in a business combination, such as genar acquisition, or if a partner changes
its business focus, its performance pursuant tagteement with us may suffer and, as a resultmase not generate any revenues from royalty
milestone and similar provisions that may be inellich our collaborative agreement with that partner

In addition, our drug discovery collaborative parsor other clients that utilize our researchgaeuill be required to submit their research for
regulatory review in order to proceed with humastitey of drug candidates. This review by the FDA ather regulatory agencies may result
in timeline setbacks or complete rejection of apligation to begin human studies, such as an Irgagtste New Drug (IND) application.

Should our collaborative partners or other clidat®e such setbacks, we would be at risk of notgpaid if there were agreed upon milestone
and royalty payments. The risks of non-approvabiar partners or other clients will include theenént risks of unfavorable regulator opinion
of a drug candidate’s safety or efficacy, as weltree risk that the data generated by our plattechnology is not found to be suitable to
support the safety or efficacy of the drug. In &iddi our platform technology is subject to theuegments of Good Laboratory Practice (GLP)
to provide suitable data for INDs and other requlafilings; no regulatory review of data from thikatform has yet been conducted and there
is no guarantee that our technology will be acddptander GLP.
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Any termination or breach by or conflict with ouratlaborators or licensees could harm our busine

If we or any of our collaborators or licensees faitenew or terminate any of our collaboratiodicgnse agreements or if either party fails to
satisfy its obligations under any of our collab@mator license agreements or complete them in alyirmanner, we could lose significant
sources of revenue, which could result in volatilit our future revenue. In addition, our agreersavith our collaborators and licensees may
have provisions that give rise to disputes regarthie rights and obligations of the parties. Threse other possible disagreements could le:
termination of the agreement or delays in collatieeaesearch, development, supply or commercitdimaf certain products, or could require
or result in litigation or arbitration. Moreovelisdgreements could arise with our collaborators agats to our intellectual property or our
rights to share in any of the future revenues otipcts developed by our collaborators. These kifidssagreements could result in costly and
time-consuming litigation. Any such conflicts with owliaborators could reduce our ability to obtairuhet collaboration agreements and ct
have a negative impact on our relationship wittstxg collaborators, adversely affecting our businend revenues. Finally, any of our
collaborations or license agreements may prove tortsuccessful.

Our collaborators could develop competing researodgucing the available pool of potential collabdms and increasing competition,
which may adversely affect our business and revenue

Our collaborators and potential collaborators calgdelop research tools similar to our own, redgiciar pool of possible collaborative parties
and increasing competition. Any of these developmeauld harm our product and technology develogretarts, which could seriously ha
our business. In addition, we may pursue oppoisin fields that could conflict with those of collaborators. Developing products that
compete with our collaborators’ or potential cotieditors’ products could preclude us from enterirtg future collaborations with our
collaborators or potential collaborators. Any ofsh developments could harm our product developaféats and could adversely affect our
business and revenues.

If restrictions on reimbursements and health careform limit our collaborator’ actual or potential financial returns on therapeic
products that they develop based on our platformhieology, our collaborators may reduce or termindteeir collaborations with us

Our collaborators’ abilities to commercialize theeatic and other life science products that arekb@ed through the research tools or service
that we provide may depend in part on the extemthich coverage and adequate payments for theskeigiowill be available from
government payers, such as Medicare and Medicaidtp health insurers, including managed carerorgdions, and other third-party payers.
These payers are increasingly challenging the prficeedical products and services. Significant utadety exists as to the reimbursement
status of newly approved therapeutic and othestifence products, and coverage and adequate ptsymay not be available for these
products.

In recent years, officials have made numerous @malgdo change the health care system in the l&selproposals included measures to limi
or eliminate payments for some medical procedunéesti@atments or subject the pricing of pharmacalgiand other medical products to
government control. Government and other thirdyppayers increasingly attempt to contain healtle casts by limiting both coverage and the
level of payments of newly approved health care@peots. In some cases, they may also refuse togearny coverage of uses of approved
products for disease indications other than thosgvhich the FDA has granted marketing approval&oments may adopt future legislative
proposals and federal, state or private payerkdatthcare goods and services may take actiomtbthieir payments for goods and services.
Any of these events could limit our ability to fomollaborations or collaborators’ and our abilibydommercialize therapeutic products
successfully.
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Any theraputic implants we develop are subject femsive and uncertain regulatory requirements, whicould adversely affect our abilit
to obtain regulatory approval in a timely mannerr at all, for products that we identify or develop.

Therapeutic and other life science products argesuto an extensive, lengthy and uncertain reguwadipproval process by the Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) and comparable agencies ireottountries. The regulation of new products igesive, and the required process of
laboratory testing and human studies is lengthyexqeensive. We may not be able to obtain FDA apgisofor those products in a timely
manner, or at all. We may encounter significanagelor excessive costs in our efforts to securessary approvals or licenses. Even if we
obtain FDA regulatory approvals, the FDA extensivelgulates manufacturing, labeling, distributingarketing, promotion and advertising
after product approval. Moreover, several of ourdoict development areas may involve relatively testinology and have not been the
subject of extensive product testing in humans. FElgellatory requirements governing these produatsralated clinical procedures remain
uncertain and the products themselves may be gubjsabstantial review by foreign governmentalulatpry authorities that could prevent or
delay approval in those countries. Regulatory negpénts ultimately imposed on our products couldtlour ability to test, manufacture and,
ultimately, commercialize our products and therebyld adversely affect our financial condition aadults of operations.

We face intense competition which could result ieduced acceptance and demand for our research taold products.

The biotechnology industry is subject to intensmpetition and rapid and significant technologidadiege. We have many potential
competitors, including major drug companies, sged biotechnology firms, academic institutionsygrnment agencies and private and
public research institutions. Many of these conipetihave significantly greater financial and tachhresources, experience and expertise in
research and development, preclinical testinggiérsj and implementing clinical trials; regulatgmocesses and approvals; production and
manufacturing; and sales and marketing of apprgveducts than we have experienced to date. Princgmapetitive factors in our industry
include the quality and breadth of technology; nuigmaent and the execution of strategy; skill andeeepce of employees, ability to recruit
and retain skilled, experienced employees; intellqroperty portfolio; the range of capabilitiés;luding target identification, validation,
drug and device discovery, development, manufaajurnarketing; and the availability of substantiapital resources to fund discovery,
development and commercialization activities.

Large and established companies compete in thedbioharket. In particular, these companies havatgrexperience and expertise than we
have in securing government contracts and grargagport their research and development effortsgigcting testing and clinical trials,
obtaining regulatory approvals to market productanufacturing such products on a broad scale amkletirdg approved products than we h
currently.

Smaller or early-stage companies and researchutistis may also prove to be significant compesitparticularly through collaborative
arrangements with large and established biotecih@r companies, or the obtaining of substantiabpe financing. We will also face
competition from these parties in recruiting antiréng qualified scientific and management pergbnn

In order to effectively compete, we will have tokeasubstantial investments in development, testirapufacturing and sales and marketing o
partner with one or more established companiesteTiseno assurance that we or our collaboratoisbh&isuccessful in commercializing and
gaining significant market share for any produ@sedoped in part through use of our technology. ®adhnologies, products and services also
may be rendered obsolete or noncompetitive asudt ifgproducts and services introduced by our oetibqrs.
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We may have product liability exposure from the salf our research tools and therapeutic productstbe services we provide.

We may have exposure to claims for product lighilRroduct liability coverage is expensive and sames difficult to obtain. Given our
operations to date, we currently do not maintaiy @moduct liability insurance coverage. At suchmdhat we determine it is prudent to obtain
this insurance, we may not be able to obtain ontaai insurance at a reasonable cost. There cao bssurance that existing insurance
coverage will extend to other products in the fatukny product liability insurance coverage may betsufficient to satisfy all liabilities
resulting from product liability claims. A succesktlaim may prevent us from obtaining adequatelpeo liability insurance in the future on
commercially desirable items, if at all. Even ilaim is not successful, defending such a claimld/be time-consuming and expensive, may
damage our reputation in the marketplace, and wiikéty divert management’s attention.

The near and long-term viability of our products drservices will depend on our ability to succesbfdstablish strategic relationships.

The near and long-term viability of our productsl aervices will depend in part on our ability tesessfully establish new strategic
collaborations with biotechnology companies, phamuodical companies, universities, hospitals, insceecompanies and government agen
Establishing strategic collaborations is difficaitd time-consuming. Potential collaborators magategollaborations based upon their
assessment of our financial, regulatory or intéllacproperty position. If we fail to establishuficient number of collaborations on accepte
terms, we may not be able to commercialize our petsdor generate sufficient revenue to fund furtkeearch and development efforts.

Even if we establish new collaborations, theseticriahips may never result in the successful dgreknt or commercialization of any product
or service candidates for several reasons bothmatid outside of our control.

Although our current focus is on providing drugatdigery services and research tools in the resestting, we may develop tissue therapeutic
products and seek approval to sell them as medicel Before we could begin commercial manufactuahany of our product candidates, we
or our manufacturers must pass a pre-approval atigpeby the FDA and comply with the FDA'’s curréavod Manufacturing Practices. If our
manufacturers fail to comply with these requirersentir product candidates would not be approvesudfcollaborators fail to comply with
these requirements after approval, we would beestibp possible regulatory action and may be licitethe jurisdictions in which we are
permitted to sell products.

We may be dependent on third-party research orgatians to conduct some of our future laboratory tieg, animal and human studies.

We may be dependent on third-party research orgaois to conduct some of our laboratory testimgnal and human studies with respect to
therapeutic tissues and other life science prodhetswe may develop in the future. If we are uadblobtain any necessary testing services o
acceptable terms, we may not complete our prodesstldpment efforts in a timely manner. If we refytbird parties for laboratory testing
and/or animal and human studies, we may lose somteat over these activities and become too depangeon these parties. These third
parties may not complete testing activities on dakeeor when we so request. We may not be abledore and maintain suitable research
organizations to conduct our laboratory testing/andnimal and human studies. We are responsiblediafirming that each of our clinical
trials is conducted in accordance with our gengla and protocol. Moreover, the FDA and foreiggulatory agencies require us to comply
with regulations and standards, commonly referoealstgood clinical practices, for conducting, rélany and reporting the results of clinical
trials to assure that data and reported resultsracble and accurate and that the trial partitipare adequately protected. Our reliance on
third parties does not relieve us of these respditis and requirements. If these third partiesndt successfully carry out their contractual
duties or
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regulatory obligations or meet expected deadliifi¢lse third parties need to be replaced or ifdality or accuracy of the data they obtain is
compromised due to the failure to adhere to omigdi protocols or regulatory requirements or ftires reasons, our pre-clinical development
activities or clinical trials may be extended, geld, suspended or terminated, and we may not leet@lolbtain regulatory approval for our
future product candidates.

We will require access to a constant, steady, fgiasupply of human cells to successfully commelizia our tools and products.

Commercialization of our tools and products wiju@e that we have access to a constant, steadsetialle supply of human cells. We will
also require access to, or development of, faedlito manufacture a sufficient supply of our t@oid products. If we are unable to manufacture
our products in commercial quantities, our busirsessfuture results will suffer.

We may rely on third-party suppliers for some ouaterials.

We may rely on third-party suppliers and vendorssfame of the materials we require in our drugaliscy and biological research products
and tool businesses as well as for the manufaofuray product candidates that we may developérfukture. Any significant problem
experienced by one of our suppliers could resudt delay or interruption in the supply of materi@sis until such supplier resolves the
problem or an alternative source of supply is ledafAny delay or interruption could negatively affeur operations.

Violation of government regulations or quality pregms could harm demand for our products or servicasd the evolving nature of
government regulations could have an adverse impattour business

To the extent that our collaborators or customseesaur products in the manufacturing or testing@sses for their drug and medical device
products, such end-products or services may bdatguby the FDA under Quality System Regulatid@SR) or the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS) under Clinical Laboratamprovement Amendments of 1988 (CLIA’88) regulatiohise customer is ultimately
responsible for QSR, CLIA’88 and other complianeguirements for their products; however, we magadgo comply with certain
requirements, and, if we fail to do so, we coulkklsales and customers and be exposed to proahidityiclaims.

Products that are intended for the diagnosis atritent of disease are subject to government régaladur drug discovery and research tool
offerings are currently intended for research egtigational uses. Research uses are not subje&iA or premarket approval or other
regulatory requirements. Investigational uses atesabject to FDA premarket approval or most reqularequirements, but are subject to
limited regulatory controls for entities conductimgestigational studies.

As we continue to adapt and develop parts of ooyt line in the future, including tisstb@sed products in the field of regenerative medi
the manufacture and marketing of our productsvéttome subject to government regulation in theddn8tates and other countries. In the
United States and most foreign countries, we vélkéquired to complete rigorous preclinical testimgl extensive human clinical trials that
demonstrate the safety and efficacy of a produotder to apply for regulatory approval to market product.

The steps required by the FDA before our proposedyzts may be marketed in the United States irmcpeiformance of preclinical (animal
and laboratory) tests; submissions to the FDA diCdh (Investigational Device Exemption), NDA (Newud Application), or BLA (Biologic
License Application) which must become effectivéobe human clinical trials may commence; perforneotadequate and well-controlled
human clinical trials to establish the safety affitacy of the product in the intended target paioin; performance of a consistent and
reproducible manufacturing process intended forroencial use; Pre-Market Approval Application (PMAnd FDA approval of the PMA
before any commercial sale or shipment of the produ
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The processes are expensive and can take manytgeamsiplete, and we may not be able to demondfnatsafety and efficacy of our prodt
to the satisfaction of such regulatory authoritigge start of clinical trials can be delayed ortédnger than anticipated for many and varied
reasons, many of which are outside of our con8afety concerns may emerge that could lengthenrtbeing trials or require additional trials
to be conducted. Regulatory authorities may algaire additional testing, and we may be requiredexmonstrate that our proposed products
represent an improved form of treatment over exgstherapies, which we may be unable to do witltonducting further clinical studies.
Moreover, if the FDA grants regulatory approvabgfroduct, the approval may be limited to spedifdications or limited with respect to our
distribution. Expanded or additional indications &pproved devices or drugs may not be approveithwdould limit our revenues. Foreign
regulatory authorities may apply similar limitateoar may refuse to grant any approval. Consequesnibn if we believe that preclinical and
clinical data are sufficient to support regulatapproval for our product candidates, the FDA andifm regulatory authorities may not
ultimately grant approval for commercial sale ity gurisdiction. If our products are not approvedr ability to generate revenues will be
limited and our business will be adversely affected

Even if a product gains regulatory approval, sygbraval is likely to limit the indicated uses fohigh it may be marketed, and the product an
the manufacturer of the product will be subjeatdatinuing regulatory review, including adversemveporting requirements and the FDA'’s
general prohibition against promoting productsunapproved uses. Failure to comply with any pogr@yal requirements can, among other
things, result in warning letters, product seizuresalls, substantial fines, injunctions, suspemsior revocations of marketing licenses,
operating restrictions and criminal prosecutionsy Af these enforcement actions, any unanticipaleghges in existing regulatory
requirements or the adoption of new requirememtang safety issues that arise with any approvedymts, could adversely affect our ability
to market products and generate revenues and tlvessely affect our ability to continue our busies

We also may be restricted or prohibited from mankebr manufacturing a product, even after obtajrproduct approval, if previously
unknown problems with the product or our manufeetane subsequently discovered and we cannot pragglgrance that newly discovered or
developed safety issues will not arise following aegulatory approval. With the use of any treattigna wide patient population, serious
adverse events may occur from time to time thaihi do not appear to relate to the treatmemfitand only if the specific event occurs with
some regularity over a period of time does thettneat become suspect as having a causal relatpptskiie adverse event. Any safety issues
could cause us to suspend or cease marketing afppuoved products, possibly subject us to suliatdiabilities, and adversely affect our
ability to generate revenues.

We are subject to various environmental, health agafety laws.

We are subject to various laws and regulationgingldo safe working conditions, laboratory and mif@eturing practices, the experimental use
of animals, emissions and wastewater dischargésth@nuse and disposal of hazardous or potentiathardous substances used in connectior
with our research, including infectious diseasenégyé/NVe also cannot accurately predict the exterggulations that might result from any
future legislative or administrative action. Anytbhese laws or regulations could cause us to iadditional expense or restrict our operations.
Compliance with environmental laws and regulatioves/ be expensive, and current or future environatleagulations may impair our
research, development or production efforts.

We will depend on our patent portfolio, our licerdéechnology and other trade secrets in the condofcour business.

Our success in large part depends on our abilitpdintain the proprietary nature of our technolagyg other trade secrets. To do so, we and
our licensors must prosecute and maintain exigtatgnts, obtain new patents and pursue trade sawteither intellectual property protection.
We also must operate without infringing the profanig rights of third parties or allowing third piag to infringe our rights. Our research,
development and commercialization
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activities, including any tools or products requgtifrom these activities, may infringe or be claihte infringe patents owned by third parties
and as to which we do not hold licenses or ottgtsi There may be rights that we are not awaridijding applications that have been filed
but not published that, when issued, could be sbagainst us. These third parties could bringnslagainst us that would cause us to incur
substantial expenses and, if successful, couldecasiso pay substantial damages. Further, if axpatingement suit were brought against us,
we could be forced to stop or delay research, deweént, manufacturing or sales of the product ologic treatment candidate that is the
subject of the suit.

In addition, competitors may infringe our patentshe patents of our collaborators or licensorsaAssult, we may be required to file
infringement claims to counter infringement for utterized use. This can be expensive and time-coimgu In addition, in an infringement
proceeding, a court may decide that a patent owgead is not valid or is unenforceable, or may sefto stop the other party from using the
technology at issue on the grounds that our patentwot cover our technology. An adverse deterranaif any litigation or defense
proceedings could put one or more of our patentslabf being invalidated or interpreted narrowatyd could put our patent applications at the
risk of not issuing.

Furthermore, because of the substantial amounisobdery required in connection with intellectuabperty litigation, there is a risk that some
of our confidential information could be comprondd®y disclosure during this type of litigation.

A significant portion of our sales are dependentarpour customer’ capital spending policies and research and deyefeent budgets, and
government funding of research and development pags at universities and other organizations, whiehe each subject to significar
and unexpected decrease.

Our prospective customers include pharmaceutichbiostechnology companies, academic institutioosegnment laboratories, and private
research foundations. Fluctuations in the reseamdhdevelopment budgets at these organizations t@wvle a significant effect on the demand
for our products and services. Research and dewelnpbudgets fluctuate due to changes in avail#isieurces, patent expirations, mergers of
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, spgmtiorities, general economic conditions, andiingbnal and governmental budgetary
policies, including but not limited to reductiomsgrants for research by federal and state ageasiagesult of the current budget crises and
budget reduction measures. In addition, our businesld be seriously damaged by any significantesese in life sciences research and
development expenditures by pharmaceutical an@dioiblogy companies, academic institutions, goveniriaboratories, or private
foundations.

The timing and amount of revenues from customeasrily on government funding of research may w#gmificantly due to factors that can
difficult to forecast. Research funding for lifeéestce research has increased more slowly duringakeseveral years compared to the previol
years and has declined in some countries, and goanés have been frozen for extended periods & tinotherwise become unavailable
various institutions, sometimes without advancéceoiGovernment funding of research and developiisesubject to the political process,
which is inherently fluid and unpredictable. Otlpeograms, such as homeland security or defenggeraral efforts to reduce the federal
budget deficit could be viewed by the United Stafe@gernment as a higher priority. These budgetagggures may result in reduced allocat

to government agencies that fund research and @aweint activities. Current steps to reduce therfddridget deficit include reduced
National Institute of Health and other research @exklopment allocations. The prolonged or increéaift away from the funding of lif
sciences research and development or delays sdirmuthe approval of government budget proposalg caase our customers to delay or
forego purchases of our products or services, wtichd seriously damage our business.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock and Liquidity Ri&s
Our securities are a “Penny Stock” and subject tpeific rules governing their sale to investors.

The SEC has adopted Rule 15g-9 which establisieedetfinition of a “penny stock,” for the purposeerant to our common stock, as any
equity security that has a market price of lesa 8800 per share or with an exercise price oftless $5.00 per share, subject to certain
exceptions. For any transaction involving a pertogls unless exempt, the rules require that a lrokdealer approve a person’s account for
transactions in penny stocks; and the broker deedeaceive from the investor a written agreemerihe transaction, setting forth the identity
and quantity of the penny stock to be purchased.

In order to approve a person’s account for tramsastin penny stocks, the broker or dealer mustintlitnancial information, investment
experience and objectives of the person; and magkasonable determination that the transactiopgimy stocks are suitable for that person
and the person has sufficient knowledge and expegien financial matters to be capable of evalugtie risks of transactions in penny stocks

The broker or dealer must also deliver, prior tg ansaction in a penny stock, a disclosure sdequhescribed by the SEC relating to the
penny stock market, which, in highlight form seigli the basis on which the broker or dealer mhdesuitability determination; and that the
broker or dealer received a signed, written agregrinem the investor prior to the transaction. Gaiig, brokers may be less willing to exec
transactions in securities subject to the “penoglstrules. This may make it more difficult for iastors sell shares of our common stock.

The Company has a limited trading history and thaseno assurance that an active market in the Compa common stock will continue at
present levels or increase in the futur

There is limited trading history in our common #toand although our common stock is currently gdate the OTCQX, there is no assurance
that an active market in our common stock will dome at present levels or increase in the futuseaesult, an investor may find it difficult to
dispose of our common stock. This factor limitslilgaidity of our common stock, and may have a matadverse effect on the market price
of our common stock and on our ability to raiseitwidal capital.

Compliance with the reporting requirements of fe@isecurities laws can be expensive.

We are a public reporting company in the Unitede3taand accordingly, subject to the informatiod eeporting requirements of the Exchange
Act and other federal securities laws, and the diamge obligations of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Tosts of preparing and filing annual and
quarterly reports and other information with theCS&nd furnishing audited reports to stockholderdatbe substantial. In addition, in order to
comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the relatgels and regulations of the SEC, we will be regghito expand disclosures and accelerate
our financial reporting requirements. If we are hieao complete the required Section 404(b) assessas to the adequacy of our internal
control over financial reporting on a timely bagisye fail to maintain or implement adequate cofsy or if our independent registered public
accounting firm is unable to provide us with an waléfied report as to the effectiveness of ourriné control over financial reporting as of the
date of our first Form 10-K for which complianceéguired, our ability to obtain additional finangicould be impaired. In addition, investors
could lose confidence in the reliability of ourémtal control over financial reporting and in tleew@racy of our periodic reports filed under
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the Exchange Act. A lack of investor confidencéhia reliability and accuracy of our public repogtioould cause our stock price to decline.

Applicable regulatory requirements, including thosentained in and issued under the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002, may make it difficult fc
us to retain or attract qualified officers and diotors, which could adversely affect the managemehits business and its ability to obtain or
retain listing of our common stock.

We may be unable to attract and retain those gedidfficers, directors and members of board conemst required to provide for effective
management because of the rules and regulationgdkiarn publicly held companies, including, but hmited to, certifications by principal
executive officers. The enactment of the SarbandeyQAct has resulted in the issuance of a seffigslated rules and regulations and the
strengthening of existing rules and regulationsheySEC, as well as the adoption of new and mairggeint rules by the stock exchanges. The
perceived increased personal risk associated wthet changes may deter qualified individuals frooepting roles as directors and executive
officers.

Further, some of these changes heighten the regemnts for board or committee membership, partitplaith respect to an individual's
independence from the corporation and level of ggpee in finance and accounting matters. We mar lolgfficulty attracting and retaining
directors with the requisite qualifications. If wee unable to attract and retain qualified officand directors, the management of our busines:s
and our ability to obtain or retain listing of aaliares of common stock on any stock exchange (&i3gume elect to seek and are successful in
obtaining such listing) could be adversely affected

We may have undisclosed liabilities and any sudbiiities could harm our revenues, business, prosise financial condition and results of
operations.

Prior to our reverse merger in February 2012, #set and liabilities of the public company shalleventually merged into were transferre
a split-off transaction (the “Split-Off") to a sapde entity (the “Split-Off Entity”) owned by thlén outstanding stockholders of the public
company shell (the “Split-Off Shareholders”). Extbough the pre-merger assets and liabilities wearesterred to the Split-Off Entity in the
Split-Off, there can be no assurance that we willtre liable for any or all of such liabilities. yusuch liabilities that survived our reverse
merger could harm our revenues, business, prosgmeascial condition and results of operationsmpar acceptance of responsibility for si
liabilities. The transfer of the operating asseis Babilities to Split-Off Entity, coupled with éSplit-Off, will result in taxable income to us in
an amount equal to the difference between thenfaikket value of the assets transferred and thengreer tax basis of the assets. Any gain
recognized, to the extent not offset by our netrafireg loss carryforward, if any, will be subjeotfederal income tax at regular corporate
income tax rates.

The price of our common stock may continue to béatite, which could lead to losses by investors arabtly securities litigation.
The trading price of our common stock is likelyb® highly volatile and could fluctuate in respotséactors such as:

e actual or anticipated variations in our operatiesutts;

e announcements of developments by us or our corops!

e regulatory actions regarding our produ

» reduced government funding for research and dewatop activities

e announcements by us or our competitors of signmifiegquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint vees$ or capital commitment

« adoption of new accounting standards affectingimgdmstry;

» additions or departures of key personi

* introduction of new products by us or our compesit

» sales of our common stock or other securitieséojren market; ar

» other events or factors, many of which are beyamdcontrol.
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The stock market is subject to significant pricd &onlume fluctuations. In the past, following peisoof volatility in the market price of a
company’s securities, securities class actionditan has often been initiated against such a cagngatigation initiated against us, whether or
not successful, could result in substantial costsdiversion of our management’s attention anduesss, which could harm our business and
financial condition.

Investors may experience dilution of their ownerghinterests because of the future issuance of aiddial shares of our common stoc

In the future, we may issue additional authorizetigreviously unissued equity securities, resultmthe dilution of the ownership interests of
our present stockholders. We may also issue additghares of our common stock or other secutitiasare convertible into or exercisable
our common stock in connection with hiring or retag employees, future acquisitions, future safesuo securities for capital raising
purposes, or for other business purposes. Thesfigsauance of any such additional shares of constumk may create downward pressure on
the trading price of our common stock. There candassurance that the we will not be requiredtae additional shares, warrants or other
convertible securities in the future in conjunctigith any capital raising efforts, including at iéce (or exercise prices) below the price at
which shares of our common stock is currently qdiate the OTCQX.

Our common stock is controlled by insiders.

Our executive officers and directors beneficialynoapproximately 18% of our outstanding sharesoofimon stock, and Dr. Gabor Forgacs,
the father of one of our directors, beneficiallyrmaanother 9% of our outstanding shares of comnamk sAlthough we are not aware of any
voting arrangements between our officers, direcaoi Dr. Forgacs, such concentrated control magradily affect the price of our common
stock. Investors who acquire our common stock naasemo effective voice in the management of ouratpmmns. Sales by our insiders or
affiliates, along with any other market transacsiorould affect the market price of our commonlstoc

We do not intend to pay dividends for the foresededture.

We have paid no dividends on our common stock te dad it is not anticipated that any dividends kel paid to holders of our common stock
in the foreseeable future. While our future dividgolicy will be based on the operating results eaypital needs of our business, it is currently
anticipated that any earnings will be retainednarice our future expansion and for the impleméniaif our business plan. As an investor,
you should take note of the fact that a lack oivadénd can further affect the market value of stack, and could significantly affect the va

of any investment.

Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documardnd Delaware law may discourage or prevent a ojpamf control, even if an
acquisition would be beneficial to our stockholdemshich could affect our stock price adversely apoevent attempts by our stockholders to
replace or remove our current management.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contpiovisions that could delay or prevent a changeootrol of our company or changes in our
board of directors that our stockholders might aersfavorable. Some of these provisions:

» authorize the issuance of preferred stock whichbeaareated and issued by the board of directatowi prior stockholder
approval, with rights senior to those of the comratotk;

« provide for a classified board of directors, witich director serving a staggered tl-year term
» prohibit our stockholders from filling board vac#s; calling special stockholder meetings, or tgkintion by written consent; al
* require advance written notice of stockholder pegt® and director nominatior
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In addition, we are subject to the provisions oft®® 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Latich may prohibit certain business
combinations with stockholders owning 15% or mdrewr outstanding voting stock. These and othevigions in our certificate of
incorporation, bylaws and Delaware law could makadre difficult for stockholders or potential agepus to obtain control of our board of
directors or initiate actions that are opposed lnytben-current board of directors, including detgyor impeding a merger, tender offer, or
proxy contest involving our company. Any delay oeyention of a change of control transaction omgjes in our board of directors could
cause the market price of our common stock to decli

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.

Item 2. Properties.

In February 2012, we entered into a lease for ew corporate headquarters at 6275 Nancy Ridge PSuie 110, San Diego, CA 92121. The
leased facility includes approximately 15,539 sgqueet, including approximately 6,400 square fééalmoratory space. The base rent unde
lease is approximately $38,800 per month with 3¥tuahescalators. The lease term is 48 months witbpéion for the Company to extend the
lease at the end of the lease term for an addit@@anonths. In addition, in March 2013, we entered a lease for a 300 square foot satellite
office at 27520 Hawthorne Blvd, Rolling Hills Estat CA 90274. The 24 month lease term begins oil Ap2013. The base rent under the
lease is approximately $600 per month. We belibag dur facilities are in good operating conditaond adequately serve our current
operations. We also anticipate that suitable aalufiti space will be available at commercially readda terms for future expansion.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

See Note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated Fiah&tatements contained within this Transitiongb&eon Form 10-K for a further
discussion of our legal proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities.
Market Information for Common Stock

On February 8, 2012, Organovo, Inc., a privateld delaware corporation, merged with and into OmanAcquisition Corp., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, a publicly trabetaware corporation, with Organovo, Inc. survivthg merger as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”). Organdiadings, Inc. commenced trading on the QB tiethef OTC on February 15, 2012, and
upgraded from the QB to the QX tier of the OTC artdber 8, 2012.

The following table sets forth, on a per sharedydsr the periods indicated, the high and lowfrides of our common stock.

2013 High Low
Three Months Ended March 31, 2C 6.3t 2.3t
Year Ended December 31, 20 High Low
Fourth Quarte 3.3¢ 1.8C
Third Quartel 4.4% 1.4¢
Second Quarte 10.9( 2.0C
First Quarter (commencing February 15, 2C 2.6t 1.24

As of May 1, 2013, there were 236 holders of reauitth approximately 17,000 non-objecting benefiagalners of the Company’s common
stock, and the closing price was $4.35.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock. We currently intend to retdifiudure earnings, if any, for use in our
business and do not anticipate paying any cashets on our common stock in the foreseeable future
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Performance Graph

The graph set forth below compares our total stoltidr returns since we commenced trading on Feprlar2012 through March 31, 2013 to
two indices: the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NR®) Biotechnology Index. This graph assumes thestment of $100 on

February 15, 2012 in our common stock, the NASDA@@osite Index and the NASDAQ Biotech Index, arsliages the reinvestment of
dividends. No cash dividends have been declar@didron our common stock. The comparisons in thptgbelow are required by the SEC
and are not intended to forecast or be indicatiygossible future performance of our common staecki we do not make or endorse any
predictions as to future stockholder returns.

Stock Price Performance Graph
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Organovo Holdings, Inc. - ONVO 100.0( 149.7( 223.0¢
NASDAQ Composite- IXIC 100.0¢ 106.0: 112.0¢
NASDAQ Biotechnology- NBI 100.0( 102.2¢ 133.2¢

Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes information abow @ompany’s equity compensation plans by type &davth 31, 2013 (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Number of
securities to be
issued upon
exercise/vesting of Weighted
outstanding Number of
options, warrants, average securities
exercise available for
Plan category units and rights price (1) future issuance
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsld 5,441,70: $ 2.1F 1,726,25!

Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtglers — — —
(1) Does not include outstanding restricted stock u
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data (in thousands exceper share data)

You should read the following selected consoliddieancial data in conjunction with our consolidafenancial statements, the notes to the
consolidated financial statements and “Managemdissussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &wekbults of Operations” included
elsewhere in this report. The selected consolidfitadicial data included in this section are ne¢mled to replace the consolidated financial
statements and the related notes included elsevirnénis report.

On March 31, 2013, our board of directors appravetiange in our fiscal year end from December ®1btarch 31st. As a result of this
change, we are filing this Transition Report onrrdi0-K for the three-month transition period endiéaich 31, 2013. References to any of oul
previous fiscal years mean the fiscal years endm@ecember 31st.

The table below shows selected consolidated fimddeita. The consolidated statements of operatiatesfor the three months ended March
31, 2013 and 2012 and the years ended Decemb20382, 2011 and 2010 and the consolidated balarex dhata at March 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012 and 2011 are derived from owalmated financial statements included elsewhethis report. The consolidated
statements of operations data for the years en@edrbber 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidateddsatheet data as of December 31, Z
2009 and 2008 are derived from our consolidateahiiial statements not included in this report. fils¢orical results presented below are not
necessarily indicative of financial results to lobiaved in future periods.

Three Months

Three Months Ended Year Year Year Year Year
Ended March 31, Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
March 31, 2012 December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 (unaudited) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Selected Consolidated Statement of Operations Dat
Revenue $ 21t % 12 % 1,197 $ 9%¢ % 60z $ 79 $ —
Operating los: $ (402 $ (1329 $ (9319 $ (2309 $ (1179 % (79)) $ (898)
Net loss $ (16,120 $ (37,08) $ (4355) $ (4,389 % (1,339 $ (872) $ (98)
Loss per share, basic
and dilutec $ (026 $ (117 $ (1.0) $ (0.19 $ (0.09 $ (0.06) $ (0.01)
Weighted average
shares outstanding,
basic and dilute: 61,750,15 31,591,66 43,149,65 22,925,69 14,620,14 14,426,25 12,262,48
March 31,
March 31, 2012 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31
2013 (unaudited) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Selected Consolidated Balance Sheet Dal
Working capital

(deficit) $ 7,762 % 9,72¢ % (6,169 $ (946) % (749 % (217) $ 144
Total asset $ 17,37¢ $ 11,24 $ 16,74¢ $ 1,40¢ $ 76C $ 49¢€ $ 171
Long-term liabilities $ 24 $ 4751 % 17  $ 1,267 $ 1,88 % 1,09t $ 24C
Stockholders’ equity

(deficit) $ 896¢ $ (3738) $ (5309 $ (1,83) $ (2,300 $ (96€) $ (96)

Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following management’s discussion and anabfsisild be read in conjunction with Organovo’s higtal consolidated financial
statements and the related notes. This managenuiatgssion and analysis contains forward-lookitegesments that involve risks and
uncertainties, such as statements of our plangatives, expectations and intentions. Any statesrtbat are not statements of historical fact
are forward-looking statements. These forward-lagkstatements are subject to risks and uncertainhiat could cause our actual
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results or events to differ materially from thospmressed or implied by the forward-looking statetaémthis Transitional Report. Factors that
could cause or contribute to such differences ide|but are not limited to, those identified bebvd those discussed in the section entitled
“Risk Factors” included elsewhere in this Transitim Report. Except as required by applicable lawdwsenot undertake any obligation to
update forward-looking statements to reflect eventsircumstances occurring after the date of fhiansitional Report.

The discussion and analysis of our financial candiaind results of operations are based on our obdated financial statements, which
we have prepared in accordance with U.S. genegradbepted accounting principles. The preparatiothese financial statements requires
Organovo to make estimates and assumptions tteattdffe reported amounts of assets and liabilgied the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidatedhficial statements, as well as the reported reveandsexpenses during the reporting periods.
On an ongoing basis, Organovo evaluates such ewsrand judgments, including those described iatgredetail below. Organovo bases its
estimates on historical experience and on varighgiofactors that Organovo believes are reasonaloléer the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments abouttreying value of assets and liabilities that aret readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates udd&erent assumptions or conditior

Overview

We are developing and commercializing functionahhn tissues that can be employed in drug discoametdydevelopment, biological
research, and as therapeutic implants for thentresatt of damaged or degenerating tissues and orgémftend to introduce a paradigm shif
the approach to the generation of three-dimensiomalan tissues, by utilizing our platform technglag create constructs in 3D that have the
potential to replicate native human biology. We taprove on previous technologies by moving awayrfimonolayer 2D cell cultures and by
enabling all or part of tissues we create to bestraoted solely of cells. We believe our experiisprinting various fully cellular human tissu
as disclosed in peer-reviewed scientific publiagaigrovides a strong foundation upon which otlssues can be built to replicate human
biology and human disease. We believe that ourcbama exclusive commercial rights to patented aatdmi-pending 3D bioprinting
technology, combined with strengths in engineeand biology, put us in an ideal position to provédeide array of products for use in
research, drug discovery and regenerative medibrapies.

Reverse Merger Transaction

On February 8, 2012, Organovo Acquisition Corp.dgaisition Corp.”), a wholly-owned subsidiary ofganovo Holdings, Inc., merged
(the “Merger”) with and into Organovo, Inc., a @tely held Delaware corporation (“Organovo”). Organ was the surviving corporation of
that Merger. As a result of the Merger, the Compaeguired the business of Organovo, and will cargtithe existing business operations of
Organovo.

Simultaneously with the Merger, on the Closing Datkof the issued and outstanding shares of Grgaeommon stock converted, on a
1 for 1 basis, into shares of the Company’s comstook, par value $0.001 per share (“Common Sto@d§o on the Closing Date, all of the
issued and outstanding options to purchase shaf@sgganovo Common Stock, all of the issued andtantiing Bridge Warrants (as defined
below) to purchase shares of Organovo Common Stoakpther outstanding warrants to purchase Orga@avnmon Stock converted,
respectively, into options (the “New Options”), nevidge warrants (the “New Bridge Warrants”) angvrnearrants (the “New Warrants”) to
purchase shares of Common Stock. The New Bridgeafvis; the New Warrants and New Options were coedem a 1 for 1 basis. The New
Options are being administered under Organovo’8 ity Incentive Plan (the “2008 Plan”), whiclet@ompany assumed and adopted on
the Closing Date in connection with the Merger.

Specifically, on the Closing Date, (i) 22,445,25%®s of Common Stock were issued to former Orgastackholders; (i) New Options
to purchase 896,256 shares of Common Stock gramiger the 2008 Plan were issued to optionees mirsnghe assumption of the 2008 P
(iii) New Warrants to purchase 1,309,750 shareSarimon Stock at $1.00 per share were issued t@folf Organovo warrants; and
(iv) New Bridge Warrants to purchase 1,500,000ehaf Common Stock at $1.00 per share were issuBddge Investors (as defined belo
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Additionally, New Warrants to purchase 100,000 shaf Common Stock at $1.00 per share were issuaddrmer noteholder of
Organovo in connection with the repayment at thesidg Date of a promissory note in the principabant of $100,000.

The Merger was treated as a recapitalization ofbepany for financial accounting purposes. Theohisal financial statements of
Organovo Holdings, Inc. before the Merger wereaegtl with the historical financial statements of@rovo before the Merger.

In connection with the Merger, Organovo Holdings;.1s Board of Directors and stockholders adopibed2012 Equity Incentive Plan
(the “2012 Plan”). The 2012 Plan provides for tsguance of up to 6,553,986 shares, or approxima@ly of our March 31, 2013 outstanding
Common Stock, to executive officers, directors,isoly board members and employees. In additiorassemed and adopted the 2008 Plan,
and as described above option holders under thatypére granted New Options to purchase Commork S further options will be grante
under the 2008 Plan. The parties have taken airechecessary to ensure that the Merger was treata tax free exchange under Section 36
(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as anmiende

As of May 1, 2013, the Company had 64,686,919 fetaled and outstanding shares of Common Stockjanglear warrants for the
opportunity to purchase an additional 4,283,88%eshaf Common Stock at exercise prices ranging B85 to $3.24 per share. In addition,
the Company had outstanding stock options to psecha aggregate of 3,618,567 shares of Common 8t@lercise prices ranging from
$0.08 to $4.85 and 14,253,688 outstanding restristeck units, with each unit representing thetrighreceive one share of Common Stock.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements, which appeder Item 8 of Part I, have been prepared im@tance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, whichiredbat we make certain assumptions and estinaatgsin connection therewith, adopt
certain accounting policies. Our significant acdaingnpolicies are set forth in Note 2 to our coigated financial statements. Of those policies
we believe that the policies discussed below maglie a higher degree of judgment and may be migtiead to an accurate reflection of our
financial condition and results of operations.

Revenue Recognition

Through March 31, 2013, the Company’s revenues haea derived from collaborative research agreesnéldtional Institute of Health
(“NIH") and U.S. Treasury Department Grants, thke €d bioprinter related products and services, larahse agreements.

The Company recognizes revenue when the followiitgria have been met: (i) persuasive evidencenareangement exists; (ii) servic
have been rendered or product has been delivaiiggrice to the customer is fixed and determirgglaind (iv) collection of the underlying
receivable is reasonably assured.

Billings to customers or payments received fromamers are included in deferred revenue on thenbalaheet until all revenue
recognition criteria are met.

Product Revenue

The Company recognizes product revenue at thedfrshipment to the customer, provided all otheereie recognition criteria have
been met. The Company recognizes product reverp@sshipment to customers, provided that (i) theepis substantially fixed or
determinable at the time of sale; (ii) the custdmebligation to pay the Company is not continggmbn resale of the products; (iii) title and
risk of loss passes to the customer at time ofrstiy; (iv) the customer has economic substance &par that provided by the

27



Table of Contents

Company; (v) the Company has no significant obiayato the customer to bring about resale of tleelpcts; and (vi) future returns can be
reasonably estimated. For any sales that do nat alesf the above criteria, revenue is deferretl @t such criteria have been met.

Collaborative and License Revenue

The Company’s collaboration revenue consists efise and collaboration agreements that containpteulements, including non-
refundable upfront fees, payments for reimburseroétitird-party research costs, payments for ongjogsearch, payments associated with
achieving specific development milestones and t@gbased on specified percentages of net pradles, if any. The Company considers a
variety of factors in determining the appropriatethod of revenue recognition under these arrangesnsuinch as whether the elements are
separable, whether there are determinable faiegadmd whether there is a unique earnings prossssiated with each element of a contract.

The Company recognizes revenue from research fgndider collaboration agreements when earned pnogortional performance”
basis as research hours are incurred. The Compaforms services as specified in each respectiveeagent on a best-efforts basis, and is
reimbursed based on labor hours incurred on eautnamt. The Company initially defers revenue foy amounts billed, or payments received,
in advance of the services being performed andyr@zes revenue pursuant to the related pattererddpnance, based on total labor hours
incurred relative to total labor hours estimatedermthe contract.

Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables

The Company occasionally enters into revenue aeraegts that contain multiple deliverables. Judgrigergquired to properly identify
the accounting units of the multiple deliverabknsactions and to determine the manner in whickme® should be allocated among the
accounting units. Moreover, judgment is used ieroteting the commercial terms and determining wdlkeriteria of revenue recognition he
been met for each deliverable in order for reveiegegnition to occur in the appropriate accounfiegod. For multiple deliverable
agreements, consideration is allocated at the timepf the agreement to all deliverables basetheir relative selling price. The relative
selling price for each deliverable is determineithgd/endor Specific Objective Evidence (VSOE) dfiag price or third-party evidence of
selling price if VSOE does not exist. If neither @B nor third-party evidence of selling price existe Company uses its best estimate of the
selling price for the deliverable.

The Company recognizes revenue for delivered elesrarly when it determines there are no unceresmegarding customer
acceptance. While changes in the allocation oathengement consideration between the units ofiatogy will not affect the amount of total
revenue recognized for a particular sales arranggraay material changes in these allocations cwoct the timing of revenue recognition,
which could affect the Company’s results of operadi

NIH Grant Revenues

Revenues from the NIH grants are based upon intanmthsubcontractor costs incurred that are spediifi covered by the grants, and
where applicable, an additional facilities and aulstrative rate that provides funding for overheagenses. These revenues are recognized
when expenses have been incurred by subcontrasidras the Company incurs internal expenses thatkated to the grants.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

When we begin to sell commercial product we expeetstablish a reserve for estimated sales retbaisvill be recorded as a reduction
to revenue. That reserve will be maintained to antfor future return of products sold in the catrperiod. The reserve will be reviewed
quarterly and will be estimated based on an arsbyfsour historical experience related to prodetims.
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Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company does not use derivative instrumerietiye exposures to cash flow, market or foreigreaay risks.

The Company reviews the terms of convertible dalbtequity instruments it issues to determine whetthere are derivative instruments,
including an embedded conversion option that isired to be bifurcated and accounted for separateky derivative financial instrument. In
circumstances where the convertible instrumentainatmore than one embedded derivative instrunmesitiding the conversion option, that is
required to be bifurcated, the bifurcated derivaiivstruments are accounted for as a single, contpdarivative instrument. Also, in
connection with the sale of convertible debt anditygnstruments, the Company may issue freestandiarrants that may, depending on their
terms, be accounted for as derivative instrumatillties, rather than as equity.

Derivative instruments are initially recorded at falue and are then revalued at each reportitg wéh changes in the fair value
reported as non-operating income or expense. Wiesndnvertible debt or equity instruments contanbedded derivative instruments that are
to be bifurcated and accounted for as liabilitts, total proceeds allocated to the convertible imstruments are first allocated to the fair ve
of all the bifurcated derivative instruments. Thenaining proceeds, if any, are then allocatedeéactinvertible instruments themselves, usually
resulting in those instruments being recordeddiseount from their face value.

Fair Value Measurements

Financial assets and liabilities are measurediatvétue, which is defined as the exchange priet Would be received for an asset or |
to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the peipal or most advantageous market for the asd@hnlity in an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date. Matutdchniques used to measure fair value mustmiagithe use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The follmuis a fair value hierarchy based on three legélaputs, of which the first two are
considered observable and the last unobservalaienthy be used to measure fair value:

» Level 1— Quoted prices in active markets for identical essetiabilities.

* Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are obaklw, either directly or indirectly, such as quopeides for similar assets or liabilities;
guoted prices in markets that are not active; beoinputs that are observable or can be corrobdiay observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or litiei.

» Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are supportetittbyy or no market activity and that are signéfitt to the fair value of the assets or
liabilities.

The Company has issued warrants, of which somelassified as derivative liabilities as a resulthed terms in the warrants that provide
for down-round protection in the event of a diletigsuance. The Company uses Level 3 inputs fealteation methodology for the warrant
derivative liabilities. The estimated fair valueeres determined using a Monte Carlo option priciraggel based on various assumptions. The
Company’s derivative liabilities are adjusted thaet estimated fair value at each period end, witli decrease or increase in the estimated fe
value being recorded in other income or expenserdogly, as adjustments to fair value of derivatiiabilities. Various factors are considerec
in the pricing models we use to value the warrantduding the Company’s current stock price, tbeaining life of the warrants, the volatility
of the Company’s stock price, and the risk freeri@st rate. Future changes in these factors wik laasignificant impact on the computed fair
value of the warrant liability. As such, we expkdtire changes in the fair value of the warrantsantinue to vary significantly from quarter to
quarter.

Stock-Based Compensation

For purposes of calculating stock-based compensatie estimate the fair value of stock options gsirBlack-Scholes option-pricing
model. The determination of the fair value of sHaased payment awards utilizing
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the Black-Scholes model is affected by our stoégepand a number of assumptions, including expeatéatility, expected life, risk-free
interest rate and expected dividends. The expeatidility is based on the historical volatility ofir common stock over the most recent pe
commensurate with the estimated expected termeastibick options. The expected life of the stockomstis based on historical and other
economic data trended into the future. The risk-freerest rate assumption is based on observectgitrates appropriate for the expected
terms of our stock options. The dividend yield asgtion is based on our history and expectationooflimidend payouts. If factors change and
we employ different assumptions, stock-based cosgi@m expense may differ significantly from what hhave recorded in the past. If there is
a difference between the assumptions used in ditieigrstock-based compensation expense and thealdatiors which become known over
time, specifically with respect to anticipated &itfires, we may change the input factors usedtigraéning stockbased compensation costs
future grants. These changes, if any, may matgiiajpact our results of operations in the periochschanges are made.

Results of Operations
Overview

Organovo was founded in Delaware in April 2007.i¥ities since the Company’s inception through Magdh 2013 were devoted
primarily to developing a platform technology fboetgeneration of functional human tissues thatbeaemployed in drug discovery and
development, biological research, and as therapaufilants for the treatment of damaged or deg¢ingréissues and organs, raising capital
and building infrastructure. The Company has nalized significant revenues from its planned ppatioperations. Accordingly, the Comps
is considered to be in the development stage.

Change in Fiscal Year End

On March 31, 2013, the Board of Directors of thenpany (the “Board”) approved a change in the Coryjsdiscal year end from
December 31st to March 31st. As a result of themge, the Company is filing a Transition Reporfonm 10-K for the three-month transition
period ended March 31, 2013. References to anuiopeevious years mean the fiscal years ending idbee 31st .

Comparison of the three months ended March 31, 2@t@l 2012
Revenues

Revenues of $0.2 million for the three months erddadch 31, 2013 increased approximately $0.1 mmijlior nearly 100%, over revent
of $0.1 million for the same period in 2012. Thatrease can be attributed to $0.1 million of gramenue during the three months ended
March 31, 2013. The Company had no active granggant revenue during the three months ended MztcR012.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased approximately $21&mibr 200%, from $1.4 million for the three mbatended March 31, 2012 to $4.2
million for the three months ended March 31, 20@8Bthis increase, $1.9 million is related to in@ed selling, general and administrative
expense while the other $0.9 million relates taeéased investment in research and development sgp€hese increases are attributed to the
continued strategic growth of the Company, inclgdadditional staffing to support research and dgweknt initiatives, incremental
investment associated with strategic growth andrmemialization project initiatives, expenses redet@ operating a publicly traded
corporation, relocation to a larger facility, amgdrieased stock compensation expense relative ttogegs and certain consulting services.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expense increased $Udhior 180%, from $0.5 million for the three mhatended March 31, 2012 to $1.4
million for the three months ended March 31, 208 3@ Company more than doubled its researchtstafipport its obligations under certain
collaborative research agreements and
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government grants, and to expand product developeftmnts in preparation for research-derived reren Fulltime research and developm
staffing increased from ten full-time employee®ablarch 31, 2012 to twenty-one fullne employees as of March 31, 2013. In additioth&
incremental payroll, benefits and stock-based corsgion resulting from increased staffing levdig, Company relocated its facilities to
accommodate its growing research staff, and inerkéis spending on lab equipment and suppliesapgation to its increased research
activities.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&1.9 million, or 211%, from $0.9 million foretithree months ended March 31,
2012 to $2.8 million for the three months ended die81, 2013. Increased staffing expenses of apmabely $0.6 million included full-time
administrative headcount which was increased friemfiill-time employees to nine full-time employeaxluding the addition of two
executives, to provide strategic infrastructurdéveloping collaborative relationships and prepamnaior commercialization of research based
product introductions and to address the additionaipliance requirements of becoming a publiclgedhcorporation. In addition, stock-based
compensation costs increased due to approxima®edyriillion in additional grants to employees, apgproximately $0.3 million for the
revaluation of restricted common stock issued twsatiants during the three months ended March @13 2Finally, the Company incurred
approximately $0.3 million more in external expenssated to becoming a publicly traded corporatiocluding SEC financial reporting,
investor relations, corporate governance, and dees.

Other Income (Expense)

The $23.7 million decrease in other expenses apared to the three months ended March 31, 2012viasrily due to the inclusion of
one-time non-cash transaction costs associatedtwgtiMerger and 2012 Private Placements in othgerese during the first quarter of 2012,
including approximately $19.0 million of expense floe excess of the fair value of warrant lial®ktiover proceeds received, $2.1 million of
financing costs in excess of proceeds receivedbar@million in interest expense from the accretibdebt discount and amortization of
deferred financing costs related to the 2011 Reitdhcement, the Merger and the 2012 Private Plxcemhe non-cash expense related to the
change in fair value of warrant liabilities decregdy approximately $1.5 million, due in part tavéx warrants outstanding as of March 31,
2013. Interest expense of less than $0.1 millioritfe three months ended March 31, 2013 is primaglated to the modification of certain
warrant agreements during the period.

Various factors are considered in the pricing medet use to value the warrants, including the Campjgacurrent stock price, the
remaining life of the warrants, the volatility dfet Company’s stock price, and the risk free intenate. Future changes in these factors will
have a significant impact on the computed fair gatithe warrant liability. As such, we expect f@ehanges in the fair value of the warrants
to continue to vary significantly from quarter toagter.

Comparison of the years ended December 31, 2012201l
Revenues

2012 total revenues of $1.2 million increased $fillon, or 20%, over 2011 revenues of $1.0 millidiat increase was due to a $0.3
million increase in collaborative agreement revenaad a $0.1 million increase in grant revenuadjglly offset by a $0.2 million reduction
product revenues. While grant revenues are nototéggéo increase significantly in 2013, they wilpresent a portion of total revenues while
the Company focuses efforts on collaborative agesd¢siand continued development of research tools.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased approximately $71Bmibr 218%, in 2012 over 2011, from $3.3 million2011 to $10.5 million in
2012. Most significantly, relative to the prior yethe Company invested in
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infrastructure and outside services to suppottatssition from private ownership to a publicly ashand traded corporation. As expected in
such transition, incremental initiatives were elshled in investor outreach, corporate governaaond,SEC financial reporting. Non-payroll
related incremental public company expenses indurr012 were approximately $3.2 million. Moreovitye Company invested in building
executive, research and development staff, inanggsayroll related expenses by $2.0 million or 1528ér 2011, from $1.3 million to $3.3
million. The increase in payroll-related expensesoanted for approximately 28% of total year-to+yiearease in operating expenses. Stock-
based compensation expense increased by approkiridtd million compared to the prior year undez #012 Equity Incentive Plan with
awards granted related to increased headcountenlith expanded operations. Additionally, the Campconsolidated and relocated its
facilities to a larger space to accommodate itsvgrg research operations staff at an incrementst @eer 2011 of approximately $0.3 million.

Research and Development Expenses

2012 research and development expenses of $3iémiilicreased by approximately $2.0 million, or #l3ver 2011 expenses of
$1.4 million as the Company increased its resestaffito support its obligations under certain @btrative research agreements and to expar
product development efforts in preparation for aesk-derived revenues. Full-time research and devwednt staffing increased from seven
scientists and engineers as of December 31, 20dibéteen as of December 31, 2012.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses grem 1.7 million in 2011 to $7.1 million in 2012y increase of $5.4 million or 318%.
Expense increases were driven by non-recurringgeisaassociated with the financing, increased plagmal facilities expenses and our
transition from operating in a private company eowinent to operating in a publicly traded corpanatiAs expected in such transition,
incremental initiatives were established in investatreach, corporate governance, and SEC finarepalrting. Nonpayroll related increment
public company expenses incurred in 2012 were apiedely $3.2 million including non-recurring chagassociated with the Merger and the
Private Placements completed during the year. diitiad, expanded staff increased payroll and faesiexpenses in 2012 over 2011 levels
general and administrative staff increasing fromr fiull-time employees as of December 31, 201 Etoftll-time employees as of
December 31, 2012. This increase was primarilytdibe addition of two executive positions and akmumber of accounting and
administrative staff. In addition, existing exeeetofficers received salary increases as approyetebBoard of Directors, reflecting the
increased responsibilities assumed as a resutarbing a publicly traded company and success @nthrinitiatives.

Other Income (Expense)

The $32.2 million increase in other expenses agpened to 2011 was primarily related to the non-¢emfisaction costs associated with
the Merger, the 2012 Private Placement, and thdeteoffer loss on the inducement to exercise wisrae completed in December 2012. We
issued warrants to purchase 6,099,195 shares @ooumon stock to the placement agent and warramqgarchase 15,247,987 of our common
stock to investors in the Private Placement. Theams issued to the placement agent and PrivatePlent investors were determined to be
derivative liabilities as a result of the anti-ditun provisions in the warrant agreements that neaylt in an adjustment to the warrant exercise
price. We revalue the derivative liability on eatlbsequent balance sheet date until the secuntigbich the derivatives liabilities relate are
exercised or expire. The fair value of warrantiliibs in excess of proceeds received was $191Bomj while the change in fair value of
warrant liabilities was $9.9 million. Financing isaction costs in excess of proceeds received fildsillion, the loss on inducement to
exercise warrants under the Tender Offer was $1l®m and our interest expense was $1.1 millip®12 interest expense was primarily
comprised of non-cash components including acareatfalebt discounts and amortization of deferredricing costs. The $2.1 million of
interest expense in 2011 was primarily comprisedasf-cash components including $1.2 million in atimation of debt
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discounts, $0.6 million fair value of warrants iedun connection with the 2011 Exchange Agreemsee (Note 6) and amortization of deferrec
financing costs of $0.1 million.

Various factors are considered in the pricing medet use to value the warrants, including the Campjgecurrent stock price, the
remaining life of the warrants, the volatility ¢fe Company'’s stock price, and the risk free intenate. Future changes in these factors will
have a significant impact on the computed fair gafithe warrant liability. As such, we expect fetehanges in the fair value of the warrants
to continue to vary significantly from quarter toagter.

Comparison of the years ended December 31, 2011 201D
Revenues

2011 total revenues of approximately $1.0 millinoreased approximately $0.4 million, or 67%, ov@t@revenues of approximately
$0.6 million. That increase was due to a $0.6 miillincrease in collaborative agreement revenuesi&td2 million increase in product
revenues, partially offset by a $0.4 million redotin grant revenues.

Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit and Gross Profit rgin

Cost of goods sold (“COGS”) consists of purchaseaoldg, and inventory-related costs. The Companydidave product revenues in
2010 and consequently did not have COGS. 2011 Cai®8.1 million were approximately 50% of produetated revenues and 10% of total
revenues.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased approximately $1libbmibr 78%, in 2011 over 2010, from approximatgty8 million in 2010 to
approximately $3.2 million in 2011. Most signifiadgn the Company invested in building its executikesearch, and development staff,
increasing payroll related expenses by approximé&@l7 million or 100% over 2010, from approximgt8D.7 million to $1.4 million. Payroll
related expenses accounted for approximately 508talf year-to-year increase in operating experSeaeral corporate expenses grew from
approximately $0.1 million in 2010 to $0.4 milliem2011, an increase of approximately $0.3 million300%, representing 21% of total
operating expense growth. 85% of that expenseaseraas the result of increased legal activityngrily focused on intellectual property
(patent) protection. In addition, the Company zéitl the services of outside consultants and rdssarvices to meet short-term spikes in
scientific and professional service demands. Outsog those services to meet short-term demandsased Company expenses by
approximately $0.3 million, from approximately $0rfilion in 2010 to $0.8 million in 2011, accoungifior 21% of the total operating expense
increases. The remaining $0.1 million increasetmattributed primarily to increased rent for aiddial office space to accommodate higher
staffing levels, and audit fees incurred in 201audit 2009 and 2010 financial statements becaesead not engaged auditors in 2010.

Research and Development Expenses

2011 research and development expenses increasggpbyximately $0.2 million, or 17%, over 2010 expes of $1.2 million as the
Company increased its research staff to accommadatbligations under certain collaborative reshagreements and to expand product
development efforts in preparation for researctivedrrevenues. Fulime research and development staffing increased four scientists an
engineers at December 31, 2010 to eight at DeceB81heér011. In addition, the Company outsourcedageresearch related activities in
response to short-term demand spikes that increaqehses nearly $0.1 million over prior year.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses grem fipproximately $0.6 million in 2010 to $1.7 nafl in 2011, an increase of
approximately $1.1 million or 183%. Most notablgetCompany invested in its general and adminisgatiaff, building needed infrastructure
to meet the needs of operating in a publicly traded
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environment. Salaries, fringe benefits and payafited expenses increased by approximately $0libmior 64% of the total increase. Legal
expenses increased $0.3 million from $0.1 millior2010 to $0.4 million in 2011. 78% of the legaperse increases were related to our patel
related legal activities as we worked diligentlyserure additional patent protection in select mzrk

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased by approximately $1l®mfrom approximately $0.2 million in 2010 to $2million in 2011. The 2011
interest expense was primarily related to non-cashponents including:

1) Accretion of debt discounts to interest expensappiroximately $1.2 milliol
2) Amortization of deferred financing costs of approaiely $0.1 millior
3) Fair value of warrants issued in connection with élxchange agreement of approximately $0.5 mi

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company exchdrajeoutstanding convertible promissory notesdmmmon stock equity, except for
one $0.1 million note, the principal and accruetiimpaid interest thereon to be paid at the clésequalified equity financing. Following the
exchange of earlier notes for equity, the Companygpleted a Bridge Financing, in which it sold $fnHlion in principal amount of 6%
promissory notes due March 31, 2012. Those notesreatically converted to equity, including accrumd unpaid interest, upon the first close
of the qualified equity financing.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since its inception, the Company has primarily degats efforts to research and development, bssip&anning, raising capital,
recruiting management and technical staff, and isioguoperating assets. Accordingly, the Compangoissidered to be in the development
stage.

Since inception, the Company has incurred negatwgh flows from operations. As of March 31, 20h@, Company had cash and cash
equivalents of $15.6 million and an accumulatedoitedf $66.4 million. The Company also had negatbash flows from operations of $2.8
million for the three months ended March 31, 2G48] $9.7 million, $1.9 million and $0.8 million ftre years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

At March 31, 2013, we had total current assetsléf B million and current liabilities of $8.4 millig resulting in working capital of $7.7
million. At December 31, 2012, we had total currassets of $15.9 million and current liabilities$@2.0 million, resulting in a working capi
deficit of $6.1 million. At December 31, 2011, wadhtotal current assets of $1.0 million and curhatilities of $2.0 million, resulting in a
working capital deficit of $1.0 million.

Net cash used in investing activities was $0.2iami|l$0.4 million, $0.1 million and $0.1 million fehe three months ended March 31,
2013 and the years December 31, 2012, 2011 and Bésiectively. The increased use of net cashviesiing activities was primarily due to
purchases of equipment for the research lab.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $8ilfion, $24.6 million, $2.1 million and $1.0 midin, for the three months ended
March 31, 2013 and the years ended December 32, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

On February 5, 2013, the Company provided a Natid®@edemption to affected warrant holders, of aginately 2.4 million warrant
shares, that they would have until March 14, 2@l8xercise their outstanding warrants at $1.0Gpare. Thereafter, any warrants that
remained unexercised would have been automatibalhledeemed by the Company at a redemption pri$8.60001 per share of common st
then issuable upon exercise of the redeemed wakardf March 14, 2013, all redeemable warrants thesh
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exercised for net proceeds of approximately $218ani During the three months ended March 31, 2@t8 Company also received
approximately $1.4 million of additional proceedsrfi the exercise of other warrants unrelated tdRb@emption Notification.

The increase in cash provided by financing actésitn 2012 was primarily due to proceeds receivex the issuance of common stock
and the exercise of warrants during the year. Dufiebruary and March 2012, the Company receivessgiooceeds of $13.7 million from the
private placement of equity securities. On Febréaryebruary 29, and March 16, 2012, the Compamypteted the first, second and final
closings, respectively, of the private placemeferaig. In these three closings, the Company is€,825,887 Units, 1,806,100 Units, and
6,916,000 Units, respectively, to accredited inmesat a price of $1.00 per Unit, including the wension of $1.5 million of principal and
$25,379 of accrued interest under certain bridgengsory notes issued in 2011. The first closing e@nducted simultaneously with the
completion of the Company’s merger (the “MergerijhnOrganovo, Inc. Each Unit consisted of one stwi@ommon stock of the Company,
$0.001 par value per share and a five-year watcgptirchase one share of common stock at $1.08haee. Total net proceeds were $11.6
million (or $12.8 million, including the conversiaf the bridge promissory notes referred to abolvedddition, the Company consummated a
tender offer in December 2012 to the holders o$taumtding warrants to purchase approximately 14lkomishares of the Company’s common
stock. The warrant tender offer, which expired @ct@mber 21, 2012, resulted in approximately 9.8anibf the outstanding warrants being
exercised by their holders for aggregate proceédpmroximately $7.7 million.

Cash provided by financing activities for the Compduring 2011 included raising proceeds of $2.Biani which came from several
transactions including a September 2011, privaaegshent offering of convertible note securitiesdpraggregate purchase price of $1.5
million. The principal plus accrued interest waswertible into the common stock of the public slvelinpany to be identified upon
consummation of the merger transaction. In additiming October and November 2011, $1.5 milliorCohvertible Notes bearing interest at
6% per annum with a maturity date of March 30, 2@ five-year warrants to purchase 1,500,000eshafrthe Company’s Common stock
were issued to investors under the private placénide Convertible Notes were outstanding at Deaarith, 2011, and were converted into
common stock in connection with the Merger. Theresats are exercisable at $1.00 per share, expfredryears, and contained down-round
price protection.

In the year ended December 31, 2010, the Compasgdr&1.0 million in cash from the sale of conu®etinotes.

Through March 31, 2013, the Company has finaneedgerations primarily through the sale of conbéetinotes, the private placemen
equity securities, and through revenue derived fgoamts or collaborative research agreements. Baiséd current operating plan and
available cash resources, the Company has sufficéepurces to fund its business for at least &x¢ twelve months.

The Company will need additional capital to furthemd product development and commercializatioiisofiuman tissues that can be
employed in drug discovery and development, bidalgiesearch, and as therapeutic implants forrdsrhent of damaged or degenerating
tissues and organs. The Company intends to cavértiire operating expenses through cash on haraligh additional financing from existi
and prospective investors, and from revenue deifiaed grants and collaborative research agreemeloiwever, we may not be successful in
obtaining funding from new or existing collaboratiresearch agreements. In addition, we cannotreetisat additional financing will be
available when needed or that, if available, finagavill be obtained on terms favorable to us ootw stockholders. Further, the NIH has
notified all grant recipients that due to the cotr€ongressional budget sequestration, the NIH naye able to issue continuation awards, ol
it may be required to negotiate a reduction indtt@pe of existing awards to meet the constraingsad. Additionally, plans for new grants or
cooperative agreements may be re-scoped, delayednoeled depending on the nature of the worktla@dvailability of resources. As a
result, we cannot assure you that we will receieeftinding under our existing NIH grants, and weymat be successful in securing additional
grants from the NIH in the future.
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Having insufficient funds may require us to delsgale back, or eliminate some or all of our devedept programs or relinquish rights to
our technology on less favorable terms than we wotherwise choose. Failure to obtain adequatadimg could eventually adversely affect
our ability to operate as a going concern. If wiseadditional funds from the issuance of equityusiéies, substantial dilution to our existing
stockholders would likely result. If we raise adutial funds by incurring debt financing, the terafishe debt may involve significant cash
payment obligations as well as covenants and spdiciaincial ratios that may restrict our ability éperate our business.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.

The primary objective of our investment activitisdo preserve our capital for the purpose of fagdiur operations. To achieve these
objectives, our investment policy allows us to ntaiima portfolio of cash, cash equivalents, andtsteom investments in a variety of securit
including commercial paper and money market fuis. primary exposure to market risk is interesbme sensitivity, which is affected by
changes in the general level of U.S. interest rg@icularly because the majority of our investitiseare comprised of cash and cash
equivalents. We currently do not hedge interest exposure. Due to the nature of our shemt investments, we believe that we are not st
to any material market risk exposure. We have éthifbbreign currency risk exposure as our businpssates primarily in U.S. dollars. We do
not have any foreign currency or other derivatinaricial instruments.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Organovo Holdings, Inc.

San Diego, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets aDrganovo Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiary(the “Company”) as of March 31,
2013, December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the relatesbtidated statements of operations, stockhol@epsity (deficit), and cash flows for the
three months ended March 31, 2013 and the yeaedldddcember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and for thedoieom April 19, 2007 (Inception)
through March 31, 2013. These financial statemardshe responsibility of the Company’s managemn@ut.responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirdl control over financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigranglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autiibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all mateapects, the financial position ©fganovo
Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaryas of March 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and 201dlLtlee results of their consolidated operationstaai
cash flows for the three months ended March 31320 the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011C4rj @nd for the period from

April 19, 2007 (Inception) through March 31, 20&Bconformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of
America.

/sl Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C.

San Diego, CA
May 24, 2013
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ORGANOVO HOLDINGS, INC.
(A development stage company)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands except per share data)

December 31

March 31,
2013 2012

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalel $ 15,62¢ $ 14,81

Grant receivabli 101 162

Inventory 88 36C

Deferred financing cos — —

Prepaid expenses and other current a: 327 527
Total current asse 16,14« 15,86¢
Fixed Assets— Net 1,04t 714
Restricted Cash 88 88
Other Assets — Net 98 81
Total asset $17,37¢ $ 16,74¢
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current Liabilities

Accounts payabl $ 641 $ 42t

Accrued expense 78C 981

Deferred revenu 53 —

Capital lease obligation, current porti 10 1C

Accrued interest payab — —

Convertible notes payab — —

Warrant liabilities, currer 6,89¢ 20,61¢
Total current liabilities 8,38 22,03t
Warrant liabilities, no-current — —
Deferred revenue, net of current port 9 —
Capital lease obligation, net of current port 15 17
Total liabilities $ 8,40¢ $ 22,05
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note
Stockholders Equity (Deficit)

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 150,000,000 stearéwrized, 64,686,919,

58,535,411 and 22,445,254 shares issued and aditsgeat March 31, 2013
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplyc 65 59
Additional paic-in capital 75,26¢ 44,88:
Deficit accumulated during the development si (66,36%) (50,24%)

Total stockholder equity (deficit)

8,96¢ (5,309

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) $17,37¢ $ 16,74¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofef@msolidated financial statements.
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December 31

2011

$ 34(

292
31¢
8C

1,031
27¢

10C
$  1,40¢

$ 65€
43¢
15¢

24
704

1,97i
1,267

$ 3,24«

22
4,83¢
(6,697

(1,839
$  1,40¢



Table of Contents

Revenue
Product
Collaborations
Grants
Total Revenue
Cost of product revent
Selling, general, and
administrative expenst
Research and development
expense:
Loss from Operations

Other Income (Expense)

Fair value of warrant
liabilities in excess of
proceeds receive

Change in fair value of
warrant liabilities

Financing transaction cos
in excess of proceeds
receivec

Loss on inducement to
exercise warrant

Loss on disposal of fixed
asset:

Interest expens

Interest incom

Other expens

Total Other Income (Expense]

Net Loss

Net loss per common shar—
basic and diluted

Weighted average number o
shares used in computing
net loss per share — basic
and diluted

ORGANOVO HOLDINGS, INC.
(A development stage company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands except per share data)

Three Months Period from
Three Months Ended April 19, 2007
Ended March 31, Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended (Inception)
March 31, 2012 December 31, December 31, December 31, through
2013 (Unaudited) 2012 2011 2010 March 31, 201z
$ — $ — $ — $ 224 $ — $ 224
98 12C 1,03¢ 68¢ 75 1,89¢
117 — 162 57 52¢ 94:
21F 12C 1,19 96¢ 603 3,063
— — — 121 — 134
2,792 90z 7,08( 1,73 57¢ 12,53¢
1,44¢ 547 3,43¢ 1,42( 1,20z 8,08:
(4,025) (1,329 (9,319) (2,305 (1,176) (17,697
— (19,019 (19,019 — — (19,019
(12,039 (13,506) (9,93)) @) — (21,972
— (2,130 (2,130) — — (2,130)
— — (1,909 — — (1,909
— — (15€) — — (15¢)
(65) (1,089) (1,08¢) (2,067 (161) (3,47))
4 — 5 — — 11
— © © &) — 30
(12,09 (35,757) (34,23 (2,07¢) (161) (48,679
$ (162120 $ (37,08) $ (4355) $ (438) $ (1,339 $ (66,369
$ (0.2 (117) 3 (1.0 $ 0.19  $ (0.09)
61,750,15 31,591,66 43,149,65 22,925,69 14,620,14

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofef@msolidated financial statements.
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ORGANOVO HOLDINGS, INC.
(A development stage company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DE FICIT) (in thousands)
Period from April 19, 2007 (Inception) through Méar81, 2013

Balance at inception (April 19, 2007

Issuance of common sto

Stocl-based compensation expel

Net Loss

Balance at December 31, 20C

Issuance of common stock to found

Issuance of restricted common st

Stocl-based compensation expel

Net Loss

Balance at December 31, 20C

Issuance of restricted common st

Stocl-based compensation expel

Net Loss

Balance at December 31, 20(

Issuance of restricted common st

Stocl-based compensation expel

Net Loss

Balance at December 31, 201

Issuance of common stock through conversion ofsnpégable

Issuance of restricted common st

Warrants issued with convertible notes and upowersion of notes payab

Beneficial conversion feature of convertible nqtagable

Stocl-based compensation expel

Net Loss

Balance at December 31, 201

Issuance of common stock in connection with me

Issuance of common stock through private placemnierdsnnection with reverse
merger

Costs associated with mer¢

Issuance of common stock through conversion ofsnpégable and accrued intere:

in connection with merge
Issuance of warrants to consulta
Issuance of common stock from warrant exercises
Issuance of restricted common st
Restricted stock forfeiture
Warrant liability removed due to exercises of watsi
Issuances of common stock from stock option exe
Stocl-based compensation expel
Loss on inducement to exercise warre
Net Loss
Balance at December 31, 201
Issuance of common stock from warrant exercises
Issuance of restricted common st
Restricted stock forfeiture
Stocl-based compensation expel
Expense related to modification of warra
Warrant liability removed due to exercise of wats:
Warrant liability reclassified to equi
Net Loss

Balance at March 31, 201

Common Stock

Number of

Shares

1,73(
12,62¢

14,35¢

13C

14,48t

211

14,70°

7,671
61

64,68

Additional
Paid-in
Amount Capital
$ — $ =
$ — $ —
2 (2)
12 (12)
— 2
$ 14 $ (12
— 2
$ 14 $ (10
— 4
$ 14 $ (6)
8 3,48:
— 1,111
— 23¢
— 9
$ 22 $ 4,83
6 (6)
14 13,70¢
— (13,729
2 1,52¢
— 89(
14 10,97:
1 (1)
— 23,32:
— 18
— 1,43t
— 1,90¢
$ 59 $ 44,88!
6 3,71¢
— 84¢
— 65
— 23,86¢
— 1,88¢
$ 65 $  75,26¢

Deficit
Accumulated
Total
During the Stockholders’
Developmen
Equity
Stage (Deficit)
$ = $ =
$ = $ =
— 2
(98) (98)
$ (98) $ (96)
— 2
(872) (872)
$ (970 $ (96€)
— 4
(1,33¢) (1,33¢)
$ (2,309 $ (2,30)
— 3,49(
— 1,111
— 23¢
— 9
(4,387) (4,387)
$ (6,697) $ (2,835
— 13,72:
— (13,729
— 1,52¢
— 89(
— 10,99:
— 23,32:
— 18
— 1,43t
— 1,90¢
(43,557) (43,557)
$ (50,24%) $ (5,309
— 3,72¢
— 84¢
— 65
— 23,86¢
— 1,88¢
(16,120 (16,120
$ (66,36%) $ 8,96¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.
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ORGANOVO HOLDINGS, INC.

(A development stage company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (in thousands)

Three Months

Three Months Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Agreijlnig frgg107
Ended March 31, December 31 December 31 December 31 (Inception)
March 31, 2012 through
2013 (Unaudited) 2012 2011 2010 March 31, 201z
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net loss $ (16,120) $ (37,08) $ (43,557) $ (4,387 $ (1,339 $ (66,36%)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
operating activities
Amortization of debt discour — 89¢€ 89¢ 1,18¢ — 2,08¢
Loss on disposal of fixed ass — — 15¢ — — 15¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 8C 17 19t 68 59 431
Amortization of deferred financing cos — 31¢ 31¢ 11¢ — 43¢
Amortization of warrants issued for servic 261 — 55€ — — 817
Interest accrued on convertible notes pay — 12 12 232 — 49t
Warrants issued in connection with exchange
agreemen — — — 52¢ — 52¢
Loss on inducement to exercise warré — — 1,90« — — 1,90«
Expense associated with warrant modifica 6E — — — — 65
Stocl-based compensatic 84¢ 4 1,43% 9 4 2,30(
Fair value of warrant liabilities in excess of
proceed: — 19,01¢ 19,01¢ — — 19,01¢
Change in fair value of warrant liabilitit 12,03« 13,50¢ 9,931 7 — 21,97:
Increase (decrease) in cash resulting from changes
in:
Grants receivabl 61 — (162) 60 (55) (201)
Inventory — (45) (459) (2249) (68) (7517)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (61) (65) (1073) (69) ) (255)
Accounts payabl 21¢€ (217) (23%) 378 23C 641
Accrued expense (201) 37 54: 132 83 78C
Deferred revenu 62 11€ (15%) 46 107 62
Accrued interes — — — — 161 —
Net cash used in operating activitie (2,755 (3,556) (9,699 (1,919 (820) (15,779
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Restricted cash depos — (398) (88) — — (88)
Purchases of fixed ass (137) (6) (357) (46) (48) (921)
Purchases of intangible ass (19) — — (65) (5) (114)
Net cash used in investing activitie (15€) (44) (445) (111) (53) (1,129
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes pa — — — 2,54:% 992 4,63(
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and exestise
warrants, ne 3,72¢ 13,72:¢ 24,71« — — 28,43¢
Proceeds from exercise of stock optis — — 18 — — 18
Proceeds from issuance of related party notes p&a — — — 22t 25 25(
Repayment of related party notes pay: — — — (250) — (250)
Repayment of convertible notes and interest pay — (110 (110) — — (110
Principal payments on capital lease obligati (#)] — @) — — 9)
Deferred financing cos — — — (43¢) — (43¢)
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,72 13,618 24,61¢ 2,08( 1,017 32,52¢
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent 811 10,01 14,477 55 144 15,62¢
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Perio 14,81° 34C 34C 28t 141 —
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Perio $ 15,62¢ 10,35! $ 14,817 $ 34C $ 28t $ 14,817
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Interest $ — $ 10 $ 10 $ — $ — $ 10
Income Taxe: $ = $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofef@msolidated financial statements.
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Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing and f&ncing Activities ($ in thousands):

During 2010 the Company issued 219,369 sharesstiad common stock to certain employees, adsiaad consultants of the
Company.

During 2011, the Company issued certain convertiokes payable that included warrants. The relage@ficial conversion feature,
valued at $823 was classified as an equity instnirard recorded as a discount to the carrying vafltlee related debt. The warrants, value
approximately $1,260, were recorded as a warrahtlify and recorded as a discount to the carryige related to debt.

During 2011, the Company issued 7,676,828 sharesrofmon stock to note holders for the conversioGadvertible Notes with a
principal balance totaling $3,030 and accrued @getotaling $460.

During 2012, the Company issued 1,525,387 sharesrafnon stock to note holders for the conversioBafvertible Notes with a
principal balance totaling $1,500 and accrued @getotaling $25.

During 2012, the Company issued warrants, valueghptoximately $32,743, in connection with the RegeMerger and the Private
Placement. The warrants were recognized as a tigguebility.

During 2012, the Company purchased equipment vat&84 through a capital lease.
During 2012, the Company transferred approxime®891 of bioprinter related inventory to fixed asset

During 2012, the Company issued 650,000 warrangsitohase shares of our common stock for consustmgices. The warrants were
valued at approximately $890.

During 2012, the warrant liability was reduced 38821 as a result of settlements during the year.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, ttragany transferred approximately $272 of bioprinédated inventory to fixed
assets.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, teamt liability was reduced by approximately $&3&s a result of warrant
exercises and $1,886 for warrants reclassifiedjagyeinstruments.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.
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Organovo Holdings, Inc.
(A development stage company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Change in Fiscal Year End

On March 31, 2013, the Board of Directors of therfpany (the “Board”) approved a change in the Comisdiscal year end from
December 31 to March 31. As a result of this chattgeCompany is filing a Transition Report on Fdr@aK for the three-month transition
period ended March 31, 2013. References to anyeo€ompany’s fiscal years mean the fiscal yearrgnBiecember 31 of that calendar year.

2. Description of Business and Summary of Significd Accounting Policies

A summary of significant accounting policies, catsitly applied in the preparation of the accompamgonsolidated financial
statements follows:

Nature of operations and basis of presenta

Organovo Holdings, Inc., (the “Company”), througghwholly-owned subsidiary, Organovo, Inc., a Dedesvcorporation, has devoted
substantially all of its resources to product depaient, raising capital, and building infrastruetifhe Company is developing and
commercializing functional human tissues that carimployed in drug discovery and development, biokd research, and as therapeutic
implants for the treatment of damaged or degenmgraissues and organs.

All of the Company’s potential products are in st and development phases and as of March 33,tB@1Company has not generated
revenue from its planned principal operations. Taeenpany does earn revenue from research and develaagreements with collaborators
and grants from governmental entities. Accordinglg, Company is considered to be in the developistage.

Reverse merger transacti

On February 8, 2012, Organovo, Inc., a privateld elaware corporation, merged with and into OmanAcquisition Corp., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Organovo Holdings, Inc., a fmiptraded Delaware corporation, with Organova;. Isurviving the merger as a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”).a8Aesult of the Merger, the Company acquired thenmss of Organovo, Inc., and will
continue the existing business operations of Organinc.

Simultaneously with the Merger, on February 8, 2(h2 “closing date”), all of the issued and outsiag shares of Organovo, Inc.’'s common
stock converted, on a 1 for 1 basis, into sharesefCompany’s common stock, par value $0.001 Ipares Also, on the closing date, all of the
issued and outstanding options to purchase shaf@syanovo, Inc.’s common stock and other outstagavarrants to purchase Organovo,
Inc.’s common stock, and all of the issued andtanting bridge warrants to purchase shares of @rgarinc.'s common stock, converted o

1 for 1 basis, into options, warrants and new laidgrrants to purchase shares of the Company’s constock.

Immediately following the consummation of the Mard@ the former security holders of Organovo,.lnommon stock had an approximate
75% voting interest in the Company and the Compdogkholders retained an approximate 25% votingr@st, (ii) former executive
management team of Organovo, Inc. remained asrlgecontinuing executive management team for they@any, and (iii) the Company’s
ongoing operations consist solely of the ongoingrafions of Organovo, Inc. Based primarily on thieetors, the Merger was accounted for a
a reverse merger and a recapitalization in accemlaith accounting principles generally acceptethaUnited States (“GAAP”). As a result,
these financial statements reflect the historiealits of
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Organovo, Inc. prior to the Merger, and the combiresults of the Company following the Merger. Plae value of Organovo, Inc. common
stock immediately prior to the Merger was $0.00€L share. The par value subsequent to the Merg&.@1 per share, and therefore the
historical results of Organovo, Inc. prior to thefder have been retroactively adjusted to affecctiange in par value.

In connection with three separate closings of egpei placement transaction completed in conneetiinthe Merger (the “Private Placement”
the Company received gross proceeds of approxign@fed million, $1.8 million and $6.9 million onadings on February 8,

2012, February 29, 2012 and March 16, 2012, resdetin 2011, the Company received $1.5 millioorh the purchase of 6% convertible
notes which were automatically converted into 1,800 shares of common stock, plus 25,387 sharescfoued interest of $25,387 on the
principal, on February 8, 2012.

The cash transaction costs related to the Merges eygproximately $2.1 million.

Before the Merger, Organovo Holdings’ Board of Biggs and stockholders adopted the 2012 Equitynitinge Plan (the “2012 Plan”). The
2012 Plan provides for the issuance of 6,553,986eshof the Company’s common stock to executivieer, directors, advisory board
members and employees. In addition, Organovo Ho&dassumed and adopted Organovo, Inc.’s 2008 Ebpgigntive Plan, which provided
for the issuance of 896,256 shares of common sfockotal shares available for issuance underetipdsns of 7,450,242.

Liquidity
As of March 31, 2013, the Company had an accunuiidéficit of approximately $66.4 million. The Conmyaalso had negative cash flows
from operations of approximately $2.8 million dgithe three months ended March 31, 2013.

On February 8, 2012, the Company received grossepds of approximately $5.0 million from the inliiéosing of a private placement
offering in conjunction with the Merger (the “PrieaPlacement”). On February 29, 2012 and Marci2062, the Company completed two
additional closings of its Private Placement reicgj\gross proceeds of approximately $1.8 milliod 6.9 million respectively.

In December 2012, the Company consummated a waemaér offer to the holders of outstanding wasaatpurchase approximately

14.5 million shares of the Company’s common stértlaccordance with the tender offer, for those aatrholders that elected to participate,
this resulted in a reduction of the exercise poftthe warrants from $1.00 per share to $0.80 paresof common stock in cash, shortened the
exercise period of the warrants so that they egptancurrently with the tender offer, and removeal price-based anti-dilution provisions
contained in the warrants. The Company completedethder offer on December 21, 2012, resultingppraximately 9.6 million warrants
being exercised for gross proceeds of approxim&ely million. In connection with the transactidime Company recognized an expense for
the inducement to exercise the warrants of apprateiy $1.9 million. The Company also incurred apprately $0.4 million in placement
agent fees, legal costs, and other related fedshwlave been recognized as an offset to the pdsaoseeived from the warrant exercises.

On February 5, 2013, the Company provided a Natid@edemption to affected warrant holders, of agimately 2.4 million warrant shares,
that they would have until March 14, 2013 to exadheir outstanding warrants at $1.00 per shdrerekfter, any warrants that remained
unexercised would have been automatically rededspdélde Company at a redemption price of $0.0001spare of common stock then
issuable upon exercise of the redeemed warramf Aarch 14, 2013, all redeemable warrants had legercised for net proceeds of
approximately $2.3 million. During the three monémded March 31, 2013, the Company also receivptbapnately $1.4 million of
additional proceeds from the exercise of other args unrelated to the Redemption Notification.
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Through March 31, 2013, the Company has finaneedgerations primarily through the sale of conbéstnotes, the private placement of
equity securities, and through revenue derived fgoamts or collaborative research agreements. Baiséd current operating plan and
available cash resources, the Company has sufficéepurces to fund its business for at least &x¢ h2 months.

The Company will need additional capital to furthemd product development and commercializatiofisoiuman tissues that can be employe
in drug discovery and development, biological resieaand as therapeutic implants for the treatroédamaged or degenerating tissues and
organs. The Company intends to cover its futureaipry expenses through cash on hand, throughiadalifinancing from existing and
prospective investors, and from revenue derivechfgoants and collaborative research agreementsetfewwe may not be successful in
obtaining funding from new or existing collaboratikesearch agreements. In addition, we cannotreetisat additional financing will be
available when needed or that, if available, finagavill be obtained on terms favorable to us ootw stockholders. Further, the NIH has
notified all grant recipients that due to the cotr€ongressional budget sequestration, the NIH naye able to issue continuation awards, ol
it may be required to negotiate a reduction ingtt@pe of existing awards to meet the constraingsad. Additionally, plans for new grants or
cooperative agreements may be re-scoped, delayednoeled depending on the nature of the worktla@@vailability of resources. As a
result, we cannot assure you that we will receieeftinding under our existing NIH grants, and weymat be successful in securing additional
grants from the NIH in the future.

Having insufficient funds may require us to delsgale back, or eliminate some or all of our develept programs or relinquish rights to our
technology on less favorable terms than we wout@mtise choose. Failure to obtain adequate fingnoinuld eventually adversely affect our
ability to operate as a going concern. If we raidditional funds from the issuance of equity sdi@s; substantial dilution to our existing
stockholders would likely result. If we raise adufital funds by incurring debt financing, the terafishe debt may involve significant cash
payment obligations as well as covenants and spdiciéincial ratios that may restrict our ability dperate our business.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in eonfty with accounting principles generally accebite the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenztt@ertain reported amounts and disclosuresoitingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates. Significant estimates usgutéparing the consolidated financial statemertkude those assumed in computing the
valuation of warrants and conversion features,megaecognized under the proportional performanaéat the valuation of stock-based
compensation expense, and the valuation allowanakeferred tax assets.

Financial instrument:

For certain of the Company'’s financial instrumeiris|luding cash and cash equivalents, grants rabbdyinventory, prepaid expenses and
other assets, accounts payable, accrued exper$esed revenue, capital lease obligations, andaxible notes payable, the carrying amo
are generally considered to be representativesif tspective fair values because of the shont-teaiture of those instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith original maturities of 90 days or less todash equivalents.

Derivative financial instrument
The Company does not use derivative instrumernigtige exposures to cash flow, market or foreigreogy.
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The Company reviews the terms of convertible debtequity instruments it issues to determine whetinere are derivative instruments,
including an embedded conversion option that isiired to be bifurcated and accounted for separately derivative financial instrument. In
circumstances where a host instrument contains thareone embedded derivative instrument, includicgnversion option, that is requiret
be bifurcated, the bifurcated derivative instrunseare accounted for as a single, compound dergvaistrument. Also, in connection with the
sale of convertible debt and equity instruments,Glompany may issue freestanding warrants that degending on their terms, be accountec
for as derivative instrument liabilities, ratheathas equity.

Derivative instruments are initially recorded dt faalue and are then revalued at each reportitg wéh changes in the fair value reported as
non-operating income or expense. When the conVerdigbt or equity instruments contain embeddedrdBvie instruments that are to be
bifurcated and accounted for as liabilities, thaltproceeds allocated to the convertible hostumsénts are first allocated to the fair value ¢
the bifurcated derivative instruments. The remajrproceeds, if any, are then allocated to the atitile instruments themselves, usually
resulting in those instruments being recordeddiseount from their face value.

The discount from the face value of the convertdabt, together with the stated interest on thunsent, is amortized over the life of the
instrument through periodic charges to intereseesp, using the effective interest method.

Restricted cas

As of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the fizowy had approximately $88,300 of restricted caglosdited with a financial institution.
$38,300 is held in certificates of deposit to suppdetter of credit agreement related to thelitgdease entered into during 2012. The
additional $50,000 is held by the financial indtitn as a guarantee for the Company’s commercalitcards.

Grant receivable

Grant receivable represents the amount due fro#tienal Institutes of Health (“NIH”) under a reseh grant. The Company considers the
grant receivable to be fully collectible; and aclingly, no allowance for doubtful amounts has bestablished. If amounts become
uncollectible, they are charged to operations.

Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of the cosharket (first-in, first-out). Inventory at March 32013 consisted of approximately $88,000 in
raw materials. Inventory at December 31, 2012 ctediof approximately $196,000 in finished good),800 work-in-process and $104,000
in raw materials. Inventory at December 31, 201risisied of approximately $204,000 in finished go&221,000 in work-in-process and
$64,000 in raw materials.

The Company provides inventory allowances basegixaopss or obsolete inventories determined baseahticipated use in the final product.
There was no obsolete inventory reserve as of Mat¢l2013, December 31, 2012 or December 31, 2011.

Deferred financing cost

As of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, therewo deferred financing costs. As of Decembef811, deferred financing costs
consisted of approximately $140,000 associated thgHVierger transaction and approximately $179#8dciated with convertible notes as
part of the private placement offering that wasiated in the fourth quarter of 2011. The defeffiedncing costs related to the private
placement offering were being amortized over tfeedf the convertible notes and were fully amodize expense upon conversion of the
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convertible notes on February 8, 2012. The defdinahcing costs associated with the Merger tratimaevere recorded as an offset to the
proceeds received, with the amount in excess obitbeceds received expensed at the effective Melajer

Fixed assets and depreciati

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Experadi that extend the life of the asset are capéichland depreciated. Depreciation and
amortization are provided using the straight-linetmod over the estimated useful lives of the rdlatgsets or, in the case of leasehold
improvements, over the lesser of the useful lifehefrelated asset or the lease term. The estinnatfdl lives of the fixed assets range betwee
two and five years.

Impairment of lon-lived assets

In accordance with authoritative guidance the Camgpaviews its long-lived assets, including propemd equipment and other assets, for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurastaimdicate that the carrying amounts of the assay not be fully recoverable. To
determine recoverability of its long-lived asséft® Company evaluates whether future undiscourgedash flows will be less than the
carrying amount of the assets and adjusts theingramount of its assets to fair value. Managerhastdetermined that no impairment of long
lived assets occurred in the period from inceptioough March 31, 2013.

Fair value measureme

Financial assets and liabilities are measurediatédue, which is defined as the exchange prieg Would be received for an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the prinaipor most advantageous market for the assetlalitigin an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. Valuatidmigoes used to measure fair value must maximeese of observable inputs and minin
the use of unobservable inputs. The following faiavalue hierarchy based on three levels of iapat which the first two are considered
observable and the last unobservable, that magée to measure fair value:

» Level 1— Quoted prices in active markets for identical essetiabilities.

* Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are obakl®, either directly or indirectly, such as quopeides for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are active; or other inputs that are observable ortmanorroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of #ssets or liabilities

» Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are supportetitthyy or no market activity and that are signéfitt to the fair value of the assets
or liabilities.

The Company has issued warrants, of which somelassified as derivative liabilities as a resultted terms in the warrants that provide for
down-round protection in the event of a dilutiveuance. The Company uses Level 3 inputs for itsatemn methodology for the warrant
derivative liabilities. The estimated fair valuesre determined using a Monte Carlo option pricirggdel based on various assumptions (see
Note 5). The Compal's derivative liabilities are adjusted to reflestimated fair value at each period end, with angreese or increase in the
estimated fair value being recorded in other incemexpense accordingly, as adjustments to thevédire of derivative liabilities. Various
factors are considered in the pricing models wetaslue the warrants, including the Company’senirstock price, the remaining life of the
warrants, the volatility of the Company’s stockcgriand the risk free interest rate. Future chaimgi®ese factors will have a significant impact
on the computed fair value of the warrant liabiliys such, we expect future changes in the fauevalf the warrants to continue to vary
significantly from quarter to quarter.
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The estimated fair values of the liabilities measuon a recurring basis are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at March 31, 2013 an
December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):
Quoted

; Significant Significant
Balance a Pr!ces Other Other
Aclgve Observable Unobservable
March 31, Markets
Inputs Inputs
_ 2013 (Level 1) _(Level2) _(Level3)
Warrant liability $ 6,89¢ — — $ 6,89¢
Q_uoteq
Prices in Significant Significant
Balance a Other Other
Active Observable Unobservable
Markets
December
31, Inputs Inputs
_ 2012 (Level 1) _(Level2) _(Level3)
Warrant liability $20,61¢ — — $ 20,61¢
Q_uoteq
Prices in Significant Significant
Balance a Other Other
Active Observable Unobservable
Markets
December
31, Inputs Inputs
2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Warrant liability $ 1,261 — — $ 1,267

The following table presents the activity for libfiés measured at estimated fair value using uaeniable inputs for 2011 and 2012 and the
three months ended March 31, 2013:

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobserdae Inputs (Level 3)

Warrant
Derivative

Liability

($00C's)

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ —
Issuance: 1,26(
Adjustments to estimated fair val 7
Balance at December 31, 20 1,26
Issuance: 32,74:
Adjustments to estimated fair val 9,931
Warrant liability removal due to settlemel (23,32)
Balance at December 31, 20 20,61¢

Issuance: —
Adjustments to estimated fair val 12,03«
Warrant liability removal due to settlemel (23,869
Warrant liability reclassified to equi (1,88¢)
Balance at March 31, 20: $ 6,89¢

Research and developmt

Research and development expenses, including dinecallocated expenses, consist of independesdinas and development costs, as well a
costs associated with sponsored research and gevefd. Research and development costs are expassecurred.
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Income taxe

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the taseguences in future years for differences betweetax basis of assets and liabilities and
their financial reporting amounts at each yearleagkd on enacted tax laws and statutory tax rpicable to the periods in which the
differences are expected to affect taxable incoraduation allowances are established when necessaegduce deferred tax assets to the
amount expected to be realized. Income tax expisrthe combination of the tax payable for the yarad the change during the year in deferre
tax assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognitic

The Company’s revenues are derived from collabazatsearch agreements, NIH and U.S. Treasury Bepat Grants, the sale of bioprinter
related products and services, and license agreaemen

The Company recognizes revenue when the followiitgria have been met: (i) persuasive evidencenareangement exists; (ii) services have
been rendered or product has been deliveredp(igk to the customer is fixed and determinablé; @) collection of the underlying receiva
is reasonably assured.

Billings to customers or payments received front@uers are included in deferred revenue on thenbalaheet until all revenue recognition
criteria are met. As of March 31, 2013, December2®l2 and December 31, 2011, the Company had dppately $62,000, $0 and $152,5
respectively, in deferred revenue related to itaborative research programs.

Product Revenue

The Company recognizes product revenue at thedfrshipment to the customer, provided all otheeraie recognition criteria have been r
The Company recognizes product revenues upon shipimeistributors, provided that (i) the pricesigbstantially fixed or determinable at the
time of sale; (ii) the distributor’s obligation ay the Company is not contingent upon resaleeptducts; (iii) title and risk of loss passes to
the distributor at time of shipment; (iv) the distitor has economic substance apart from that geavby the Company; (v) the Company has
no significant obligation to the distributor to gi about resale of the products; and (vi) fututerres can be reasonably estimated. For any
that do not meet all of the above criteria, reveisugeferred until all such criteria have been met.

Research and Development Revenue Under CollaberAtjveements

The Company’s collaboration revenue consists efhlse and collaboration agreements that containpteulements, including non-refundable
upfront fees, payments for reimbursement of thisdypresearch costs, payments for ongoing resepagiments associated with achieving
specific development milestones and royalties basesbecified percentages of net product salesyif The Company considers a variety of
factors in determining the appropriate method @éneie recognition under these arrangements, suchetber the elements are separable,
whether there are determinable fair values andhanghere is a unique earnings process associdtie@ach element of a contract.

The Company recognizes revenue from research fgndider collaboration agreements when earned pnogortional performance” basis as
research hours are incurred. The Company perfoenvices as specified in each respective agreenmeatbest-efforts basis, and is reimbursec
based on labor hours incurred on each contractCiimepany initially defers revenue for any amourilled or payments received in advanct
the services being performed and recognizes revemseiant to the related pattern of performancgedan total labor hours incurred relative
to total labor hours estimated under the contract.

In December 2010, the Company entered into a 1Zhresearch contract agreement with a third paryereby the Company was engaged tc
perform research and development services on d-fe basis for
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approximately $600,000. Based on the proportiordlgopmance criteria, the Company recognized appraiely $150,000 and $450,000 in
revenue related to the contract during the yeade@December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Tetanue recognized on the contract fron
inception through March 31, 2013 was approxima$&§0,000.

In October 2011, the Company entered into a rebeamotract agreement with a third party, whereley@ompany is performing research and
development services on a fixed-fee basis for $8L(B®. The agreement included an initial paymetiiéoCompany of approximately
$239,000 with remaining payments expected to ooear a twenty-one month period. On November 2722€@e agreement was amended to
include additional research and development sesyfoe an additional $135,000, bringing the totahttact value to $1,500,000. This extends
the original contract (which runs concurrently)rfriwenty-one months to twengight months. The Company recorded approximatefyGED.
$885,000 and $239,000 for the three months endedhVad, 2013 and the years ended December 31,8812011, respectively, in revenue
related to the research contract in recognitiothefproportional performance achieved. Total reeeraeognized on the contract from incep
through March 31, 2013 was approximately $1,221,000

Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables

The Company occasionally enters into revenue aeraegts that contain multiple deliverables. Judgrigerdquired to properly identify the
accounting units of the multiple deliverable trastgns and to determine the manner in which revesinoild be allocated among the
accounting units. Moreover, judgment is used iaroteting the commercial terms and determining wdikcriteria of revenue recognition he
been met for each deliverable in order for reveiegegnition to occur in the appropriate accounfirgod. For multiple deliverable
agreements, consideration is allocated at the trmepf the agreement to all deliverables basetheir relative selling price. The relative
selling price for each deliverable is determineithg&/ SOE of selling price or third-party evidendeselling price if VSOE does not exist. If
neither VSOE nor third-party evidence of sellingcprexists, the Company uses its best estimateea$elling price for the deliverable.

The Company recognizes revenue for delivered elesrany when it determines there are no uncer@snegarding customer acceptance.

While changes in the allocation of the arrangensensideration between the units of accounting matl affect the amount of total revenue

recognized for a particular sales arrangementpaatgrial changes in these allocations could imfiectiming of revenue recognition, which
could affect the Company’s results of operations.

The Company expects to periodically receive liceiess for non-exclusive research licensing assetiaith funded research projects. License
fees under these arrangements are recognizedhmv/égrn of the contract or development period hastbeen determined that such license
not have stand-alone value.

NIH and U.S. Treasury Grant Reveni

During 2010, the U.S. Treasury awarded the Companyone-time grants totaling approximately $397,8@0nvestments in qualifying
therapeutic discovery projects under section 48ihefinternal Revenue Code. The grants cover raiseluent for qualifying expenses
incurred by the Company in 2010 and 2009. The masdérom these grants are classified in “Revenudsrants” for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and the period from inceptiooutth March 31, 2013.

During 2012, 2010 and 2009, the NIH awarded the @om three research grants totaling approximat@s8%00. Revenues from the NIH
grants are based upon internal and subcontracsts owurred that are specifically covered by trents, and where applicable, an additional
facilities and administrative rate that providesding for overhead expenses. These revenues argnieed when expenses have been incurre
by subcontractors and as the Company incurs iftexpenses that are related to the grants. Revewognized under these grants for the t
months ended March 31, 2013 and the years endeshidesr 31, 2012, 2011 and
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2010 was approximately $117,000, $162,000, $57a0@20$131,000, respectively. Total revenue recowetr these grants from inception
through March 31, 2013 was approximately $546,000.

Stock-based compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiaocordance with the Financial Accounting and &aas Board’'s ASC Topic718,
Compensation — Stock Compensatighich establishes accounting for equity instrumentshanged for employee services. Under such
provisions, stock-based compensation cost is medsatrthe grant date, based on the calculategdhie of the award, and is recognized as ar
expense, under the straight-line method, over tingl@yee’s requisite service period (generally thsting period of the equity grant).

The Company accounts for equity instruments, inolgidestricted stock or stock options, issued to-amployees in accordance with
authoritative guidance for equity based paymentsoteemployees. Stock options issued to non-empkogee accounted for at their estimated
fair value determined using the Black-Scholes appdcing model. The fair value of options grantedion-employees is re-measured as they
vest, and the resulting increase in value, if @yecognized as expense during the period théerbkervices are rendered. Restricted stock
issued to non-employees is accounted for at tiséimated fair value as they vest.

Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the ehangquity during a period from transactions atitepevents and circumstances from non
owner sources. The Company is required to recombaiponents of comprehensive income (loss) irfittencial statements in the period in
which they are recognized. Net income (loss) ahédrotomprehensive income (loss), including unredligains and losses on investments, are
reported, net of their related tax effect, to arat comprehensive income (loss). For the threghs@anded March 31, 2013 and the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and fqetiied April 19, 2007 (inception) through March, 2013, the comprehensive loss was
equal to the net loss.

Net loss per shar

Basic and diluted net loss per share has been dechpsing the weighted-average number of sharesmafon stock outstanding during the
period. The weighted-average number of sharestasemimpute diluted loss per share excludes anyradexercise of stock options, and the
assumed issuance of common stock under restritiel snits, shares subject to repurchase and warasthe effect would be anti-dilutive.
No dilutive effect was calculated for the three itsnended March 31, 2013 or 2012, or the yearscebéeember 31, 2012, 2011 or 201(

the Company reported a net loss for each respeotisied and the effect would have been anti-dikutiVotal common stock equivalents that
were excluded from computing diluted net loss [are were approximately 8.9 million, 25.8 millidrg.2 million, 6.4 million and O for the
three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 angetims ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 ctespe.

Reclassification:

Certain reclassifications were made to the 2014dnfial statements in order to conform to the priegiem of the financial statements for 2012
and subsequent periods. The reclassifications alithawve any effect on previously reported net tosstockholders’ equity (deficit).
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3. Fixed Assets
Fixed assets consisted of the following (in thoulsan

March 31 December 3: December 3:

2013 2012 2011
Laboratory equipment $1,16¢ $ 75¢ $ 34E
Leasehold improvemen — — 34
Computer software and equipm:e 114 114 28
Furniture and fixture 33 33 19
1,31¢ 90¢€ 42€
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (270 (192 (14¥¢)
$ 1,04¢ $ 714 $ 27¢

Depreciation and amortization expense for threethwoended March 31, 2013 and the years ended Dexe8hp2012, 2011 and 2010 was
approximately $78,000, $188,000, $63,000 and $37 @&pectively. Depreciation and amortization eggewas approximately $414,000 for
the period from April 19, 2007 (inception) throulftarch 31, 2013.

4. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consisted of the following (iruznds):

March 31 December 3. December 3:

2013 2012 2011
Accrued compensation $ 38€ $ 72C $ 317
Other accrued expens 124 73 92
Deferred ren 27C 18¢ 29
$ 78C $ 981 $ 43¢

5. Derivative Liability

During 2012, in relation to the reverse Merger #rathree offerings under the Private PlacemertCibmpany issued 21,347,182 five-year
warrants to purchase the Company’s common stodRctober and November of 2011, the Company issi&@DI000 five-year warrants in
connection with Convertible Notes. The exerciseguof the warrants is protected against down-rdinahcing throughout the term of the
warrant, as described below. Pursuant to ASC 81&rtEASC 815-40, the fair value of the warrantamfroximately $32.7 million and $1.3
million in 2012 and 2011, respectively, was recdrds a derivative liability on the issuance dates.

The Company revalued the warrants as of the eeadda reporting period, and the estimated fair vafube outstanding warrant liabilities was
$6.9 million, $20.6 million and $1.3 million as bfarch 31, 2013, December 31, 2012 and Decembe2(1l, respectively. The changes in
value of the derivative liabilities for the thre@nths ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, and the gealed December 31, 2012 and 2011 were
increases of $12.0 million, $13.5 million, $9.9 linih and less than $0.1 million, respectively, amel included in other income (expense) in the
statements of operations.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013 aagdlar ended December 31, 2012, 6,990,556 and@ 231 warrants that were classified
as derivative liabilities were exercised. The watsavere revalued as of the settlement date, andhitnge in fair value was recognized to
earnings. In addition, in 2013 the Company entaredlamendment agreements with certain of the wairalders, which removed the down-
round pricing
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protection provision, resulting in 600,065 of thes@rants being reclassified from liability instrants to equity instruments. The Company
also recognized a reduction in the warrant liabliased on the fair value as of the settlement fdatine warrants exercised and as of the
modification date for the warrants that were amenaéth a corresponding increase in additional paidapital.

The derivative liabilities were valued at the clagtdates of the Private Placement and the endobf regporting period using a Monte Carlo
valuation model with the following assumptions:

December 31 December 31 March 31,
2011 2012 2013
Closing price per share of common stock $ N/A $ 2.6( $ 3.6¢
Exercise price per sha $ 1.0C $ 1.0C $ 1.0C
Expected volatility 109.8% 92.9% 88.8%
Risk-free interest rat 0.82% 0.54% 0.57%
Dividend yield — — —
Remaining expected term of underlying securities
(years) 5.0C 4.1¢ 3.8¢

In addition, as of the valuation dates, managerassgssed the probabilities of future financingaragsions in the Monte Carlo valuation
models. Management also applied a discount for ¢dickarketability to the valuation of the derivatiliabilities based on such trading
restrictions due to certain of the shares not bedggstered.

In accordance with the terms of the warrant agregsnd, prior to the expiration date of the watsarthe Company issues additional shares of
common stock, as defined below, without considenatir for a consideration per share less thanxbecese price of the warrants in effect
immediately prior to such issue, then the exempigee shall be reduced, concurrently with suchdsso a price (calculated to the nearest cent)
determined by multiplying such exercise price byaation, (A) the numerator of which shall be (¢ number of shares of common stock
outstanding immediately prior to such issue plygtig number of shares of common stock which tlygeagate consideration received or to be
received by the Company for the total number ofitaatthl shares of common stock so issued wouldhmse at such exercise price; and (B]
denominator of which shall be the number of shafemmon stock outstanding immediately prior tolsissue plus the number of such
additional shares of common stock so issued; peavitiat (i) all shares of common stock issuablenugmmversion or exchange of convertible
securities outstanding immediately prior to suguésshall be deemed to be outstanding, and (iiptingber of shares of common stock deeme
issuable upon conversion or exchange of such outstg convertible securities shall be determinetthauit giving effect to any adjustments to
the conversion or exchange price or conversiorxonange rate of such convertible securities regyifiom the issuance of additional share
common stock that is the subject of this calcutatleor purposes of the warrants, “additional shafemmmon stock” shall mean all shares of
common stock issued by the Company after the éffedate (including without limitation any shardscommon stock issuable upon
conversion or exchange of any convertible secsritieupon exercise of any option or warrant, oasieonverted basis), other than: (i) shares
of common stock (and/or warrants for any classooiity securities of the Company) issued or issuaplen conversion or exchange of any
convertible securities or exercise of any optiongarrants outstanding on the effective date;stidres of common stock issued or issuable by
reason of a dividend, stock split, split-up or otlistribution on shares of common stock; (iii) sswof common stock (or options with respect
thereto) issued or issuable to employees or direc or consultants to, the Company or any o$ufissidiaries pursuant to a plan, agreeme
arrangement approved by the Board of Directorbi@f@ompany; (iv) any securities issued or issuaplthe Company pursuant to (A) the
Private Placement; or (B) the Merger; (v) secwsitssued pursuant to acquisitions or strategicstations approved by a majority of
disinterested directors of the Company, provided #my such issuance shall only be to a personhvihjétself or through its subsidiaries, an
operating company in a business synergistic wighbilsiness of the Company and in which the Compaesives benefits in addition to the
investment of funds, but shall not include a tratisa in which the Company is issuing securitigsnarily for the purpose of raising capital or
to an entity whose primary business
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is investing in securities and (vi) securities &x$to financial institutions, institutional investor lessors in connection with credit
arrangements, equipment financings or similar tatisns approved by a majority of disinteresteéctiors of the Company, but shall not
include a transaction in which the Company is isgigecurities primarily for the purpose of raisaapital or to an entity whose primary
business is investing in securities.

Upon each adjustment of the exercise price purdoahe provisions stated above, the number ofamighares issuable upon exercise of the
warrants shall be adjusted by multiplying a nundmpral to the exercise price in effect immediatelgmto such adjustment by the number of
warrant shares issuable upon exercise of the wamamnediately prior to such adjustment and dividihg product so obtained by the adjusted
exercise price.

6. Convertible Notes Payable
Convertible notes

From February 9, 2008 through December 31, 201 Ctrapany raised an aggregate of $2,390,000 in ftimdsigh loans consisting of
convertible notes (“Convertible Notes”) to certalmareholders, management, vendors, and investioesndtes bore interest at rates ranging
from 8% to 10% per annum and had maturity dategingrfrom 2011 to 2018. The Convertible Notes waneecured and subordinated to
certain senior indebtedness of the Company, andlf@onvertible Notes the principal plus accruetgiest was convertible into the Company’
common stock. During October 2011, in connectiothwhe Exchange Agreement and Release, the Cobleelbtes and accrued interest
converted into the Company’s common stock.

Local Bridge

During July and August 2011, $740,000 of Conveetiibtes bearing interest at 20% per annum, andawsrto purchase shares of common
stock were issued to investors. The ConvertibleeBlotere due at the earlier of 1) one year fronish@ance date or 2) one week after the
consummation of a Merger transaction. The numberasfants to be issued was equal to the note pahdivided by the exercise price. The
exercise price was the per share or per unit faikat value received in the Merger. The notes werwertible at a price per share equal to
seventy-five percent (75%) of the per share fairketavalue of the total consideration receiveddahare of a public compasytommon stoc
to be determined to be identified upon consummatfcan merger.

The Company determined that the beneficial congari@ature and the warrants did not represent eddaederivative instruments.
Additionally, at issuance of the Convertible Noti® Company did not record the discount for theeffieial conversion feature due to the
contingencies surrounding conversion. The benéficiaversion feature was recorded when the conticige were resolved. In accordance
with ASC 470-20, Debt with Conversion and OtheriGm, the Company recorded a discount of approxm&583,700 for the warrants in
2011. The discount was amortized to interest ex@ensr the term of the Convertible Notes usingetfiective interest method.

The Company calculated the fair value of the wasrasing the Black-Scholes Model using a volatitify109.84%, an interest rate of 1.12%
and a dividend yield of zero. Certain of these Gutible Notes and accrued interest were convertiedthe Company’s common stock in
October 2011, in connection with the Exchange Agreat and Release, as discussed below. Upon coonghg Company recognized the
unamortized debt discount related to these notegdoest expense. The Company recognized approsiynd583,700 of interest expense for
the amortization of the note discount during tharyended December 31, 2011.

Exchange Agreement and Rele

In October 2011, the Company’s Board of Directard shareholders approved an Exchange Agreementetshthe note holders could
exchange their Convertible Notes and accrued isttéoe shares of the
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Company’s common stock and warrants to purchas€dmepany’s common stock. A total of $3,030,000 rifigipal and approximately
$459,800 of accrued interest converted, at priaeging from $0.27 to $0.75, into 7,676,828 shaféke@Company’s common stock, plus five-
year warrants to purchase 1,309,750 common shhegsexercise price of $1.00 per share. For thddrslthat elected to participate,
Exchange Agreement and Release resulted in theekatnan of the Convertible Notes and release ftbennote holders for any claims related
to the Convertible Notes.

The Company determined that the warrants issuednnection with the Exchange Agreement and Rele@seot represent derivative
instruments. The warrants, valued at approximéaiBRi7,600, were classified as equity instrumentsrandrded as interest expense on the dat
of issuance in 2011. The Company calculated thevédiie of the warrants using the Black-Scholes 8lodsing a volatility of 110.13%, an
interest rate of 1.11% and a dividend yield of zero

At December 31, 2011, an unsecured $100,000 CobleeNote, with interest at 10% and a maturity dzftépril 2014, remained outstanding.
In February 2012, at the close of the Merger, thevertible note and accrued interest in the agdeegfeapproximately $110,000 were repaid.

2011 Private placement

On September 18, 2011, Organovo, Inc.’s Board ofé@ors authorized a private placement offeringmfo 30 Units of its securities at a price
of $50,000 per Unit for an aggregate purchase mfi¢e,500,000. Each Unit consisted of a convegtitite in the principal amount of $50,000
accruing simple interest at the rate of 6% per enfthe “Convertible Notes”), plus five-year warramd purchase 50,000 shares of the next
Qualified Round of Equity Securities, at an exex@sice of $1.00 per share. The principal plus@ediinterest was convertible into the
Company’s common stock upon consummation of a Mdrgasaction.

During October and November 2011, $1,500,000 ofv@dible Notes bearing interest at 6% per annurh wimaturity date of March 30, 20:
and five-year warrants to purchase 1,500,000 sludrégm® Company’s common stock were issued to iovesinder the Private Placement. The
warrants are exercisable at $1.00 per share, expfiee years, and contain down-round price pridec The Convertible Notes were
outstanding at December 31, 2011, and were cor/grte 1,525,387 Units during February 2012, inreetion with the Merger.

The Company determined that the warrants represdativative instrument due to the down-round ppicgection, and accordingly, the
Company recorded a derivative liability relatedhe warrants, with a corresponding debt discoumtpgfroximately $1,260,300. See Note 5.
Additionally, upon issuance of the notes during ZGhe Company recorded the discount for the beiaéfionversion feature of $239,700. The
debt discount associated with the warrants andftoéaleconversion feature were amortized to inteeegense over the life of the Convertible
Notes, and fully amortized upon conversion of tlemzrtible Notes in 2012. The Company recordedrDapproximately $896,200 a
$603,800 of interest expense for the amortizaticth® debt discount during the three months endacch31, 2013 and the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and appabely $1,500,000 for the period from inceptibnaugh March 31, 2013.

As consideration for locating investors to partitiin the Private Placement, the placement agened a cash payment of $195,000 in 2011.
Additionally, upon closing of the Merger transaatio 2012, the placement agent earned five-yearants to purchase 610,155 shares of the
Company’s common stock at $1.00 per share. Thesamia contain down round protection and were @fladsas derivative liabilities upon
issuance. See Note 5.

2012 Private placement

During 2012, concurrently with the closing of thelder and in contemplation of the Merger, the Camgpaompleted the initial closing of the
Private Placement of up to 8,000,000 Units of ésusities, at a price of
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$1.00 per Unit, with the ability to increase théeoihg to an aggregate of up to 16,000,000 UnigeHUnit consisted of one share of common
stock and a warrant to purchase one share of constook. The Company completed three closings utingePrivate Placement during 2012,
and raised total gross proceeds of $13,722,60Qatalnet proceeds of $11,593,066. The Compane&43,722,600 shares of its common
stock and warrants to purchase 15,247,987 shaiitsafmmon stock (including warrants to purcha$2%3,387 shares to former holders of the
Convertible Notes) exercisable at $1.00 to invesitothe Offering. The placement agent and itscsetbdealers were paid total cash
commissions of $1,372,260 and the placement agastpaid an expense allowance of $411,678 and wasdglacement agent warrants to
purchase 6,099,195 shares of the Company’s comtonok at an exercise price of $1.00 per share.

The warrants issued to the investors and the plastagent, as described above, contain down rorotdqgtion, and accordingly, were
classified as derivative liabilities upon issuaroe.the closing date, the derivative liabilitiesreveecorded at an estimated fair value of
approximately $32,742,000. Given that the fair eadi the derivative liabilities exceeded the tatalceeds of the private placement of
$13,722,600, no net amounts were allocated todhamon stock. The amount by which the recordedlitads exceeded the proceeds of
approximately $19,019,400 was charged to otherresgoat the closing dates. The Company has revéieederivative liability as of each
reporting period, and will continue to do so onleaabsequent balance sheet date until the sesuitighich the derivative liabilities relate are
exercised or expire, with any changes in the falue recognized through earnings in the statenferperations. See Note 5.

Interest expense, including amortization of theerdiscounts and other interest expense was appateiyr65,000, $1,088,000, $1,088,000,
$2,067,000 and $161,000 for the three months ektdgdh 31, 2013 and 2012, and the years ended Dene®ih2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Interest expense, including amoiitzadf the note discounts and other interest expeios the period from April 19, 2007
(inception) through March 31, 2013 was approxime$d,471,000.

Registration rights agreeme

The Company entered into a registration rights egent (“Registration Rights Agreement”) with thgestors in the Offering. Under the terms
of the Registration Rights Agreement, the Compaged to file a registration statement coveringrédsale of the common stock underlying
the Units and the common stock that is issuablexancise of the Investor Warrants (but not the comstock that is issuable upon exercise o
the warrants issued as compensation to the pladeagent in connection with the Offering) within 88ys from the final closing date of the
Offering (the “Filing Deadline”). The Company filéde registration statement on June 13, 2012. &pistration statement became effective
during July 2012.

The Company agreed to use reasonable efforts tatamaithe effectiveness of the registration statgrtterough the one year anniversary from
the date the registration statement was declafedtife by the Securities and Exchange Commisgtom SEC”),or until Rule 144 of the 19z
Act is available to investors in the Offering wittspect to all of their shares, whichever is earlfehe Company had not met the Effectivenes:
Deadline, the Company would have been liable fonetary penalties equal to one-half of one perd@sg) of each investor’'s investment in
the offering at the end of every 30 day perioddimihg such Effectiveness Deadline failure untillstailure was cured. No payments shall be
owed with respect to any period during which althe# investors registrable securities may be sold by such iovestder Rule 144 or pursue

to another exemption from registration.

7. Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock

In October 2011, the Company issued 7,676,828 sleireommon stock to note holders for the conversioConvertible Notes with a
principal balance totaling $3,030,000 and accrmgetést totaling approximately $459,800.
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During February and March 2012, the Company isQ1eP47,987 shares of common stock related to thgéieSee Note 2. During the year
ended December 31, 2012, the Company issued 18228hares of common stock upon exercise of 134B32yarrants.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, a totaP4f064 stock options were exercised for 224,06des of common stock.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, tragany issued 6,131,198 shares of common stock exencise of 7,090,556 warrants.

Restricted stock awarc

In February 2008, four founders, including the €hrecutive Officer (“CEQ”) and three directorstbe Company received 11,779,960 share
of restricted common stock, 25% vesting after ttst year and the remaining 75% vesting in equakiguly portions over the following three
years. These shares are fully vested as of MarcAMI13.

In May of 2008, the Board of Directors of the Compapproved the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (thed@lan”). The 2008 Plan authorized
the issuance of up to 1,521,584 common sharesvfards of incentive stock options, non-statutorgktoptions, restricted stock awards,
restricted stock award units, and stock appreciaights. The 2008 Plan terminates on July 1, 20i8shares were issued under the 2008 Plz
during 2012 or the three months ended March 313284d the Company does not intend to issue ani@ua shares from the 2008 Plan in
the future.

From 2008 through December 31, 2011, the Compaueda total of 1,258,934 shares of restricted comstock to various employees,
advisors, and consultants of the Company. Of tkbsees, 1,086,662 were issued under the 2008 Rththa remaining 172,272 shares were
issued outside the plan.

In January of 2012, the Board of Directors of tltmrpany approved the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan‘{#@.2 Plan). The 2012 Plan authori:
the issuance of up to 6,553,986 shares of comnoak $6r awards of incentive stock options, nontgtaty stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, restricted stock unitsfgrmance units, performance shares, and othek stocash awards. The 2012 Plan terminates
ten years after its adoption.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coyniganed an aggregate 950,000 of restricted stoitk to certain members of senior
management and 230,000 restricted stock unitsteemecutive employees. The vesting schedule is @%e anniversary of the vesting start
date over four years.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coyniganed an aggregate 200,000 restricted stock tmitertain members of senior
management, the vesting of which is performancedass of March 31, 2013, the Company believedittencial targets would be met, and
accordingly is recognizing the related stock basmdpensation expense over the requisite servi¢edper

During the year ended December 31, 2012, there 885516 shares of restricted stock cancelled 0148of the restricted stock units that w
forfeited relate to shares of common stock retutnettie Company, at the option of the holders oieec the tax liability related to the vesting
211,250 restricted stock units. Upon the returthefcommon stock, 83,986 stock option grants witmediate vesting were granted to the
individuals at the vesting date market value stpkee. The remaining 37,500 restricted stock wwitse forfeited by one staff member upon
termination of their employment with the Company.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, thragany issued an aggregate of 55,000 restricte#f stats with immediate vesting to a
consultant.
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During the three months ended March 31, 2013, tere 34,690 shares of restricted stock canceé@®90 shares of forfeited restricted st
units relate to shares of common stock returnédgdCompany, at the option of the holder, to cdliertax liability related to the vesting of
50,000 restricted stock units. Upon the returrhef¢common stock, 24,690 stock option grants witimédiate vesting were granted to the
individual at the vesting date market value stpkiee. The remaining 10,000 shares of restrictedkstvere forfeited by one staff member upor
termination of their employment with the Company.

A summary of the Company’s restricted stock awatd/iy is as follows:

Number of

Shares

Unvested at December 31, 2007 —

Grantec 12,627,69
Vested (65,217
Canceled / forfeite: —

Unvested at December 31, 2C 12,562,48
Grantec 130,42:
Vested (5,373,00)
Canceled / forfeite: —

Unvested at December 31, 2C 7,319,90:
Grantec 219,36¢
Vested (3,256,19)
Canceled / forfeite: —

Unvested at December 31, 2C 4,283,08:
Grantec 61,40¢
Vested (3,233,19)
Canceled / forfeite: —

Unvested at December 31, 2C 1,111,29!
Grantec 1,380,00I
Vested (1,143,73)
Canceled / forfeite: (185,519
Unvested at December 31, 2C 1,162,04.
Grantec 55,00(
Vested (196,61
Canceled / forfeite: (34,690
Unvested at March 31, 20: 985,74

The fair value of each restricted common stock avisrecognized as stock-based expense over thiagyésrm of the award. The Company
recorded restricted stock-based compensation egperigperating expenses for employees and non-gegdoof approximately $478,000,
$835,000, $3,000 and $4,000 during the three mantted March 31, 2013 and the years ended Dece3tth2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The Company recorded restricted sbaded compensation expense of approximately $;08@4or the period from April 19,
2007 (inception) through March 31, 2013. Expensefch of the periods included approximately $4,@23,000, $0 and $0 for research and
development during the three months ended Marc2@13 and the years ended December 31, 2012, 21204 0, respectively. General and
administrative expense for the three months endatiM31, 2013 and the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2010 were approximately
$474,000, $812,000, $3,000 and $4,000, respectively

As of March 31, 2013, total unrecognized restrictetkbased compensation expense was approximately $Q@E0a@vhich will be recognize
over a weighted average period of 2.42 years.
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Stock options

Under the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan, on October2l11, the Company granted an officer incentieelsbptions to purchase 896,256 shares
of common stock at an exercise price of $0.08 pares a quarter of which vested on the one yeavarsary of employment, in May 2012, ¢
the remaining options are vesting ratably over#maining 36 month term. Other than this grant,Gbenpany does not intend to issue any
additional shares under the 2008 Plan.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013 aagelar ended December 31, 2012 under the 2012yHquéntive Plan, 927,981 and
2,023,394 incentive stock options were issued sy, at various exercise prices, a quarter bicl will vest on either the one year
anniversary of employment or one year anniversétiievesting commencement date. The remainingogtwill vest ratably over the
remaining 36 month terms, with the exception 0628,and 83,986 of the incentive stock option grdnting the three month period ended
March 31, 2013 and the year December 31, 2012 ¢tgply, that have immediate vesting at the graatedind 124,000 of the incentive stock
option grants in the year ended December 31, 20dt2d/est quarterly over three years.

The following table summarizes stock option acgivar 2010 through 2012 and the three months efiadh 31, 2013:

Weighted- Aggregate
Options Average Intrinsic
Outstanding Exercise Pric¢ Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 — —
Options grante 896,25¢ $ 0.0¢
Options cancele — —
Options exercise — —

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 896,25 $ 0.0¢ —

Options grante 2,023,39. $ 1.9t

Options cancele (5,000 $ 2.2t

Options exercise (224,069 $ 0.0¢ $ 564,64
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,690,58 $ 1.4¢ $3,041,471

Options grante 927,98: $ 3.9¢

Options cancele — —

Options exercise — — —
Outstanding at March 31, 20. 3,618,56 $ 2.11 $5,909,15.
Vested and Exercisable at March 31, 2 144,84: $ 2.5¢€ $ 184,96:

The weighted-average remaining contractual teraptibns exercisable and outstanding at March 3132@as approximately 9.5 years and
9.33 years, respectively.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation nodsdliculate the fair value of stock options. Stbeked compensation expense is
recognized over the vesting period using the dttdige method. The fair value of stock options vweatimated at the grant date using the
following weighted average assumptions:

Three Months

Ended Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 201:¢ December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Dividend yield — — —
Volatility 96.8:% 96.2:% 111.0(%
Risk-free interest rat 1.1% 0.8%% 1.07%
Expected life of option 6.07 year 6.05 year 5.0 year
Weighted average grant date

fair value $ 3.04 $ 1.5C $ 0.0€
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The assumed dividend yield was based on the Congparpectation of not paying dividends in the fermsble future. Due to the Company’s
limited historical data, the estimated volatilibhcbrporates the historical and implied volatilifycomparable companies whose share prices al
publicly available. The risk-free interest ratetamption was based on the U.S. Treasury rates. Eighted average expected life of options
was estimated using the average of the contratgtral and the weighted average vesting term of ghiews. Certain options granted to
consultants are subject to variable accountingrtreat and are required to be revalued until vested.

The total stock option based compensation recoadezperating expense was approximately $370,0@D,860, $6,000 and $0 for the three
months ended March 31, 2013 and the years endeshidesr 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Thepgaay recorded stock-based
compensation expense of approximately $976,00€hfoperiod from April 19, 2007 (inception) throulgtarch 31, 2013. Expense for each of
the periods included approximately $58,000, $81,800and $0 for research and development duringhtie® months ended March 31, 2013
and the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ardr@dgectively. General and administrative expémsthe three months ended March 31,
2013 and years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 dridv2ére approximately $312,000, $519,000, $6,0@0%inrespectively.

The total unrecognized compensation cost relatetht@sted stock option grants as of March 31, 2@d8approximately $4,926,000 and the
weighted average period over which these grantexgected to vest is 3.5 years.

Warrants

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 208 Company issued warrants to investors to puecBas347,182 and 2,909,750 shares,
respectively, of its common stock.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013 amgd¢lar ended December 31, 2012, 3,852,214 and9,9%5o0f these warrants were
exercised for cash proceeds of approximately $308&0and $11,356,000, respectively, and 3,138,8423d2,500 of these warrants were
exercised through a cashless exercise for issuaEr,@20,764 and 163,635 shares of common stosgerively. No warrants were exercised
during 2011.

In December 2012, the Company consummated a wamatér offer to the holders of outstanding wasdatpurchase approximately

14.5 million shares of the Company’s common stéelaccordance with the tender offer, for those aatrholders that elected to participate,
this resulted in a reduction of the exercise potthe warrants from $1.00 per share to $0.80 paresof common stock in cash, shortened the
exercise period of the warrants so that they egptmncurrently with the tender offer, and removsal rice-based anti-dilution provisions
contained in the warrants. The Company completedahder offer on December 21, 2012, resultingpjpr@ximately 9.6 million warrants
being exercised for gross proceeds of approxim&eJy00,000. In connection with the transactior,@mmpany recognized an expense for th
inducement to exercise the warrants of approxim##/900,000. The Company also incurred approxiin&00,000 in placement agent fees,
legal costs, and other related fees, which hava bEmgnized as an offset to the proceeds recéivetthe warrant exercises.

6,990,556 of the warrants exercised during theethmenths ended March 31, 2013 and 13,010,237 of#ineants exercised in 2012 were
derivative liabilities and were valued at the settént date. The warrant liability was reduced taitgcpt the fair value on the settlement date.
See Note 5.

During March 2013, the Company entered into amemimgreements for 600,065 warrants to purchase amstock which reduced the
exercise price of the warrants from $1.00 to $0e3@ended the exercise term to five years froneffective date of the amendment, and
removed the down-round price protection provisibthe warrant agreement related to the adjustmieexercise price upon issuance of

additional shares of
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common stock. As a result of the removal of the wlwaund price protection provision, the warrantsemeclassified from liability to equity
instruments at their fair value. The Company deieech the incremental expense associated with thdifitation based on the fair value of the
awards prior to and subsequent to the modificafitwe fair value of the awards subsequent to maaifio was calculated using the Black-
Scholes model. The incremental expense associatedh& modification of approximately $65,000 wasagnized as interest expense for the
three months ended March 31, 2013.

Additionally, during the year ended December 31, 2the Company entered into four agreements witiswatants for services. In connection
with the agreements, the Company issued a to@b@000 warrants to purchase common stock, atprareging from $1.70 to $3.24, with
lives ranging from two to five years, to be earoedr service periods of up to six months. TheVaiue of the warrants was estimated to be
approximately $890,000, which was recognized agpgid asset and is being amortized over the tétivecconsulting agreements. These
warrants were classified as equity instruments leethey do not contain any anti-dilution provisiohhe Black-Scholes model, using
volatility rates ranging from 79.8% to 103.8% arskifree interest rate factors ranging from 0.2400.63%, were used to determine the value
The value is being amortized over the term of tie@ments. During the three months ended MarcB@I3 and the year ended December 31
2012, the Company recognized approximately $261a0@0$556,000, respectively, of expense relatédese services. During the three
months ended March 31, 2013, 58,220 shares of constock were issued through a cashless exercis@00000 of these warrants.

The following table summarizes warrant activity foe years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012 anldrdeemonths ended March 31, 2013:

Weighted-

Average
Warrants Exercise Price

Balance at December 31, 2010 — —
Grantec 2,909,75I $ 1.0C

Expired / Cancele — —

Exercisec — —
Balance at December 31, 20 2,909,75I $ 1.0C
Grantec 21,997,18 $ 1.04
Exercisec (13,532,48) $ 0.8¢4
Balance at December 31, 20 11,374,44 $ 1.0¢

Grantec — —
Exercisec (7,090,55I) $ 1.01
Balance at March 31, 20: 4,283,88! $ 1.17

The warrants outstanding at March 31, 2013 are idiately exercisable at prices between $0.90 ang2d§3er share, and have a weighted
average remaining term of approximately 3.88 years.

Common stock reserved for future issuance
Common stock reserved for future issuance considtéue following at March 31, 2013:

Common stock warrants outstand 4,283,88
Common stock options outstanding under the 2008 672,19:
Common stock options outstanding and reserved uhde2012 Plal 4,672,63
Total 9,628,71
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8. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating leases

The Company leases office and laboratory spacerundeneancelable operating lease which was entered inf@bruary 2012 with the futu
minimum lease payments from the current lease dezlibelow. The Company records rent expense aaiglgtline basis over the life of the
lease and records the excess of expense over thansrpaid as deferred rent. Deferred rent is trexiuin accrued expenses in the consolidate
balance sheets.

Rent expense was approximately $105,500, $60,2%%,600, $145,200 and $107,500 for the three maibed March 31, 2013 and 2012,
and the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar] 2&pectively. Rent expense was approximatel F0® for the period from April 19,
2007 (inception) through March 31, 2013.

The Company entered into a new facilities leasg2@6 Nancy Ridge Drive, San Diego, CA 92121. Thesédewas signed on February 27, 2012
with occupancy as of July 15, 2012. The base redeuthe lease is approximately $38,800 per moiitth 396 annual escalators. The lease -
is 48 months with an option for the Company to edtthe lease at the end of the lease term.

Future minimum rental payments required under djpgrdeases that have initial or remaining non-edalole lease terms in excess of one yea
as of March 31, 2013, are as follows (in thousands)

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2C $ 47¢
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2C 492
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2C 50€
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2C 17C
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2C —

Total $1,64¢

Capital leases

During 2012, the Company entered into an agreetodefise certain laboratory equipment under a rocalable capital lease, which is
included in fixed assets as follows (in thousands):

March 31, 201

Lab equipmen $34
Less accumulated depreciati NG
Net book value $30

Depreciation expense related to the capital lehfgation was approximately $1,700 and 2,900 ferttiree months ended March 31, 2013 an
the year ended December 31, 2012, respectively.

Future minimum capital lease payments at Marct2813 are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2C $11
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2C 11
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2C _ 4
Total minimum lease paymer 26
Amount representing intere _ @
Present value of minimum lease payme 25
Less current portio (10
Long term portior

©

1

o
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Legal Matters

In addition to commitments and obligations in thdimary course of business, the Company is sulje¢arious claims and pending and
potential legal actions arising out of the normaiduct of our business. The Company assesses gentiies to determine the degree of
probability and range of possible loss for potdrtcxrual in its financial statements. An estimdtes$ contingency is accrued in its financial
statements if it is probable that a liability h&eb incurred and the amount of the loss can bemaaly estimated. Because litigation is
inherently unpredictable and unfavorable resolioould occur, assessing litigation contingen@dsghly subjective and requires judgments
about future events. When evaluating contingentiiesCompany may be unable to provide a meanirggiiinate due to a number of factors,
including the procedural status of the matter iagion, the presence of complex or novel legalrieepand/or the ongoing discovery and
development of information important to the mattémsaddition, damage amounts claimed in litigataainst it may be unsupported,
exaggerated or unrelated to possible outcomesasisdch are not meaningful indicators of its padéhiability. The Company regularly
reviews contingencies to determine the adequadtg aetcruals and related disclosures. The amouuitiofate loss may differ from these
estimates. It is possible that cash flows or resafiioperations could be materially affected in pasticular period by the unfavorable resolus
of one or more of these contingencies. Whether@sses finally determined in any claim, action,dstigation or proceeding could reasonably
have a material effect on the Company’s busin@sanéial condition, results of operations or cdskw$ will depend on a number of variables,
including: the timing and amount of such losses;stiucture and type of any remedies; the monsignificance of any such losses, damages
or remedies may have on our consolidated finastéiements; and the unique facts and circumstafdbs particular matter that may give |
to additional factors. The aggregate amounts adcarelated to these matters are not material toatad liabilities of the Company.

9. Licensing Agreements and Research Contracts
University of Missouri

On March 24, 2009, the Company entered into a $ieagreement with the Curators of the Universitilssouri to in-license certain
technology and intellectual property relating ti-sssembling cell aggregates and to intermedialielar units. The Company received the
exclusive worldwide rights to commercialize producbmprising this technology for all fields of uS&e Company paid to the University of
Missouri a nonrefundable license fee of $25,000temlcommitted to reimburse the University of Migsdor certain prior and future patent
costs. Each year the Company is required to pattieersity of Missouri royalties ranging from 1% 3% of net sales depending on the level
of net sales achieved by the Company each yearinfkmam annual royalty of $25,000 is due beginninge2rs after the calendar year of the
first commercial sale and is credited to salesltig The license agreement terminates upon eiquiraf the patents licensed and is subject t
certain conditions as defined in the license age#nwhich are expected to expire after 2029. T2&®O0 license fee is included in Other
Assets in the accompanying balance sheets andhig Amortized over the life of the related patent.

On March 12, 2010, the Company entered into a ieagreement with the Curators of the Universitylisouri to in-license certain
technology and intellectual property relating tgieeered biological nerve grafts. The Company kexmbihe exclusive worldwide rights to
commercialize products comprising this technolagydil fields of use. The Company paid to Universit Missouri a nonrefundable license
fee of $5,000 and has committed to reimburse thigddsity of Missouri for certain prior and futuratent costs. In 2012 and 2011, the
Company paid the University of Missouri approxiniat®193,500 and $23,800, respectively, for priciepacosts relating to the license
agreements with the University of Missouri. No pays were made during the three months ended MdrcP013. Each year the Company is
required to pay the University of Missouri royadtieinging from 1% to 3% of net sales dependindheridvel of net sales achieved by the
Company each year. A minimum annual royalty of 88,3 due beginning 2 years after the calendar gktre first commercial sale and is
credited to sales royalties. An additional royaify$12,500 is due if there are no net sales witivimyears from the effective date of the licer
The license agreement terminates upon expiratiadheopatents licensed
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and is subject to certain conditions as definetthénlicense agreement. The $5,000 license feelisdad in Other Assets and is being amort
over the life of the related patent.

Clemson University

On May 2, 2011, the Company entered into a liceggeement with Clemson University Research Fouodati in-license certain technology
and intellectual property relating to ink-jet piig of viable cells. The Company received the esigtel worldwide rights to commercialize
products comprising this technology for all fielsfsuse. The Company agreed to pay Clemson Uniyeasiionrefundable license fee of
$32,500, as well as an additional $32,500 to reisdClemson University for certain prior and futpegent costs. These fees, totaling $65,
are included in Other Assets and are being amadrtzer the life of the related patent. Each yearGompany is required to pay the University
royalties ranging from 1.5% to 3% of net sales delggg on the level of net sales reached each yehnmanimum annual fees ranging from
$20,000 to $40,000. Specific terms of the royaltygl hcense agreements are confidential. The liceagseement terminates upon expiration of
the patents licensed, which is expected to expitday 2024, and is subject to certain conditiondefined in the license agreement.

No royalty payments have been made under the diz@rese agreements as of March 31, 2013. Approxiyn&4,000 will be due to tr
University of Missouri in the fiscal year ended Mar31, 2014 relating to the first commercial sAlenual royalty payments of $25,000 will be
due to the University of Missouri beginning in tiiecal year ended March 31, 2015 per the termh@féspective license agreements.

Becton Dickinsol

In February of 2013, we purchased the exclusivetsi¢p intellectual property relating to perfusiminreactors for culturing cells from Becton
Dickinson and Company for $18,500. This fee isudeld in Other Assets and is being amortized owelifia of the related patent. This patent
represents the acquisition of bioreactor technofogyhe support of our 3D tissues for use in diisgovery and development. No future
royalties or milestone payments are owed to BeBtickinson and Company for this patent.

Capitalized license fees consisted of the follow(incthousands):

March 31, December 31 December 31

2013 2012 2011
License fees $ 114 $ 95 $ 95
Less accumulated amortizati (17 (15 (8)
License fees, ne $ 97 $ 80 $ 87

Amortization expense of licenses was approximelp00, $7,000, $5,200, $1,500 and $16,700 fottttee months ended March 31, 2013,
the years ended December 31 2012, 2011 and 20d@hemperiod from April 19, 2007 (inception) thrdulglarch 31, 2013, respectively. At
March 31, 2013, the weighted average remaining ipadion period for all licenses was approximate}yyears. The annual amortization
expense of licenses for the next five years isregtid to be approximately $8,500 per year.
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10. Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettermporary differences between the carrying anmmohassets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for in¢armpurposes. Significant components of the Comisamst deferred tax assets are as
follows as of March 31, 2013, December 31, 2012Bedember 31, 2011 (in thousands):

March 31 December 3: December 3:
2013 2012 2011

Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carry forwar $ — $ — $ 1,62(
Research and development cre — — 19C
Depreciation and amortizatic (D 2 8
Accrued expenses and reser 224 29C 107
Stock compensatic 743 562 —
Other, ne 1 — —
Total deferred tax asse 967 85C 1,92¢
Valuation allowanct (967) (850 (1,92

$ — $ — $ —

A full valuation allowance has been establishedffset the deferred tax assets as management cemmcitide that realization of such assets i
more likely than not. Under the Internal Revenuel€¢'IRC”) Sections 382 and 383, annual use ofrairoperating loss and research tax
credit carryforwards to offset taxable income maylimited based on cumulative changes in ownerahiphave not completed an analysis to
determine whether any such limitations have beggedred as of March 31, 2013. Until this analysisampleted, we have removed the
deferred tax assets related to net operating l@s#sesearch credits from our deferred tax asbetdsile. The valuation allowance increase
approximately $117,000 and decreased by approxiynbie075,000 during the three months ended Mafci?813 and the year ended
December 31, 2012, respectively.

The Company had federal and state net operatisgckmsyforwards of approximately $15,382,000 an8l,$18,000 at March 31, 2013,
respectively. The federal and state net operatiag tarryforwards will begin expiring in 2028, wsdgreviously utilized.

The Company had federal and state research taik cexdy forwards of approximately $292,000 and &800 at March 31, 2013, respectively.
The federal research tax credit carryforwards begpiring in 2028. The state research tax credityéarwards do not expire.

In 2009 the Company adopted the accounting guidotaencertainty in income taxes pursuant to ASG-I8. The adoption of this guidance
did not have a material impact on the Company’sobdated financial statements. The Company dideatrd any accruals for income tax
accounting uncertainties for the three months efdiath 31, 2013 or the years ended December 32,2011 or 2010.

The Company'’s policy is to recognize interest aadgities that would be assessed in relation teetttement value of unrecognized tax
benefits as a component of income tax expenseCoinepany did not accrue either interest or penadtiesf March 31, 2013, December 31,
2012 or 2011.

The Company is subject to tax in the United Statekin the state of California. As of March 31, 20the Company’s tax years from inception
are subject to examination by the tax authorifié& Company is not currently under examinationty @d.S. federal or state jurisdictions.
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11. Concentrations
Credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@mmpany to concentrations of credit risk consigtigpally of temporary cash investments.
The Company maintains cash balances at variousdiakinstitutions primarily located in San Diegiccounts at these institutions are secure
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. iAes, balances may exceed federally insured liffilte. Company has not experienced losse
in such accounts, and management believes th&dhmpany is not exposed to any significant credk viith respect to its cash and cash
equivalents.

12. Subsequent Events

Subsequent to March 31, 2013, the Company entatecaimendment agreements for 269,657 warrantsrhase common stock, which
reduced the exercise price of the warrants frod®fio $0.85, extended the exercise term to fives/Bam the effective date of the
amendment, and removed the down-round price pioteptovision of the warrant agreement relatechtoadjustment of exercise price upon
issuance of additional shares of common stock.
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ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresdtetiesigned to ensure that information requivdektdisclosed in our reports filed purst

to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ameftied'Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed, surizedy and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, thatl such information is accumulated and commuedtto our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financald accounting officer, as appropriate, to allonety decisions regarding required disclosure

Under the supervision of our Chief Executive Offiaed our Chief Financial Officer, and with the tpzEipation of all members of management,
we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure ctsand procedures, as such term is defined under RBa-15(e) promulgated under the
Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, our prialogxecutive officer and our principal financiafioér concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were designed and operating efédets of the end of the period covered by this$iteon Form 10-K.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control oveairfcial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)haf Exchange Act) that occurred during the
fiscal quarter to which this report relates thag hreaterially affected, or is reasonably likely tatarially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Contro

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand our Chief Financial Officer, do not expdetttour disclosure controls or our
internal control over financial reporting will prent or detect all error and all fraud. A contrastgyn, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absassirance that the control system’s objectiviso@imet. The design of a control system
must reflect the fact that there are resource caings, and the benefits of controls must be canrsid relative to their costs. Further, because ¢
the inherent limitations in all control systems,ev@luation of controls can provide absolute asmgdhat misstatements due to error or fraud
will not occur or that all control issues and imstas of fraud, if any, have been detected. Thdsmémt limitations include the realities that
judgments in decisic-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can oceaause of simple error or mistake. Controls ¢sm lze

circumvented by the individual acts of some persbysollusion of two or more people, or by managatroverride of the controls. The des

of any system of controls is based in part on aegasumptions about the likelihood of future eseand there can be no assurance that any
design will succeed in achieving its stated goaldeu all potential future conditions. Projectiorisny evaluation of controls effectiveness to
future periods are subject to risks. Over time tads may become inadequate because of changesidtitions or deterioration in the degree of
compliance with policies or procedures

Iltem 9B. Other Information.
None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

Information relating to our directors, executivéicdgrs and corporate governance, including our Gafdethics, will be included in the proxy
statement for the 2013 annual meeting of the Cogipahareholders, expected to be filed within 1289sdof the end of our transition period,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information relating to executive compensation Wwélincluded in the proxy statement for the 2013uahmeeting of the Company’s
shareholders, expected to be filed within 120 ddythe end of our transition period, which is ingorated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Information relating to the beneficial ownershipoofr common stock will be included in the proxytstaent for the 2013 annual meeting of the
Company’s shareholders, expected to be filed witzid days of the end of our transition period, \Wwhgcincorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

Information relating to certain relationships aethted transactions and director independencéwilhcluded in the proxy statement for the
2013 annual meeting of the Company’s shareholégpected to be filed within 120 days of the endwftransition period, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information relating to principal accountant feasl @ervices will be included in the proxy statenfenthe 2013 annual meeting of the
Company’s shareholders, expected to be filed witZid days of the end of our transition period, \Wwhgcincorporated herein by reference.

38



Table of Contents

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents have been filed as phthis Transition Report on Form 10-K:
1. Consolidated Financial Statemer: The information required by this item is includedtem 8 of Part Il of this repor

2. Financial Statement Schedu: Financial statement schedules required undereilaged instructions are not applicable for the¢hr
months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 and the yle@s ended December 31, 2012, and have therederedmitted

3. Exhibits: The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index attachedhis report are filed or incorporated by refere as part of this
Transitional Report

(b) The exhibits listed in the accompanying Exhibdex are filed or incorporated by reference as @ithis Transition Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13)lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, thggsteant has duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

ORGANOVO HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ Keith Murphy
Keith Murphy,
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Date: May 24, 201:

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persbose signature appears below constitutes annirgp BARRY
MICHAELS as his true and lawful attorneys-in-faodaagents, with full power of substitution and festitution, for him and in his name,
place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to &ty and all amendments to this Report, and edli¢é same, with all exhibits thereto, and othe
documents in connection therewith, with the Semgiand Exchange Commission, granting unto samdreys-in-fact and agents, and each of
them, full power and authority to do and perforraleand every act and thing requisite and nece$sdrg done in connection therewith, as
fully to all intents and purposes as he might arldalo in person, hereby ratifying and confirmihgttall said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or
any of them or their or his substitute or substitiitmay lawfully do or cause to be done by virtaeebf.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed &ydhowing persons in the capacities
and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/sl Keith Murphy Chief Executive Officer and President (Principal May 24, 2013
Keith Murphy Executive Officer)

/sl Barry Michaels Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary May 24, 2013
Barry Michaels (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Robert Baltera, Jr. Director May 24, 2013
Robert Baltera, Ji

/sl Andras Forgacs Director May 24, 2013
Andras Forgac

/sl James Glover Director May 24, 2013
James Glove

/sl Adam Stern Director May 24, 2013
Adam Sterr
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Exhibit No.
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganizatioieddas of February 8, 2012, by and among Organaldihys, Inc
a Delaware corporation, Organovo Acquisition Coapdelaware corporation and Organovo, Inc., a Dataw
corporation (incorporated by reference from Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8<Kfjlad with the
SEC on February 13, 201

Certificate of Merger as filed with the Delawarec&sary of State effective February 8, 2012 (inooaped by reference
from Exhibit 2.2 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Articles of Merger as filed with the Nevada Secngtaf State effective December 28, 2011 (incorpeatdiy reference
from Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current ReportFaorm 8-K, as filed with the Securities and Exchea@pmmission
(the*SEC") on February 3, 2012 (tt*February 2012 Form-K")

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Dece2#e2011, by and between Real Estate RestoratidiRantal, Inc.
and Organovo Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by rafesefrom Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Current Répor Form 8K,
as filed with the SEC on January 4, 20

Certificate of Merger as filed with the Delawarec&sary of State effective January 30, 2012 (incoafed by reference
from Exhibit 2.3 to the February 2012 Fori-K)

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Janugrg@®L2, by and between Organovo Holdings, Incvélda) and
Organovo Holdings, Inc. (Delaware) (incorporateddigrence from Exhibit 2.2 to the February 201n#6-K)

Articles of Merger as filed with the Nevada Secrngtaf State effective January 30, 2012 (incorpatdtg reference from
Exhibit 2.4 to the February 2012 Forr-K)

Certificate of Incorporation of Organovo Holdingsg. (Delaware) (incorporated by reference from ii!8.1 to the
February 2012 Form-K)

Bylaws of Organovo Holdings, Inc. (Delaware) (inporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 to the Febr2®12 Form 8-
K)

Form of Bridge Warrant of Organovo, Inc. (incorgedhby reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Compar@isrent Report
on Form K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Form of Bridge Promissory Note of Organovo, Inacirporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to thenpany’s
Current Report on Formr-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Form of Warrant of Organovo, Inc. issued to fortnelders of Organovo, Inc. promissory notes (inceajed by
reference from Exhibit 4.3 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Form of Investor Warrant of Organovo Holdings, Ifincorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.4 to @@mpany’s
Current Report on Formr-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Form of Warrant of Organovo Holdings, Inc. ($1.6@reise price) issued to Placement Agent (incotieary referenc
from Exhibit 4.2(i) to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:

Form of Warrant of Organovo, Inc. ($1.00 exercigeq) issued to Selling Agent (incorporated by refee from Exhib
4.2(ii) to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:
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Exhibit No.

4.7

4.8

49

4.10

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

Description

Form of Warrant of Organovo Holdings, Inc. ($1.0@ise price) issued to Placement Agent in exchdogOrganovo,
Inc. warrant issued to Selling Agent (incorporabgdeference from Exhibit 4.2(iii) to the Compangsirrent Report on
Form &K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:

Form of Warrant of Organovo Holdings, Inc. issueddrmer holders of Organovo, Inc. promissory ndbesorporated b
reference from Exhibit 4.5 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Form of New Bridge Warrant (incorporated by refesfrom Exhibit 4.6 to the Company’s Current Remort~orm 8-K,
as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Form of Lock-Up Agreement (incorporated by refeefrom Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Current ReportForm 8-K,
as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement between @rgatnc. and the Bridge Investors (incorporateddfgrence from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Escrow Agreement, by and among Organovo, Inc.Stkéng Agent and Signature Bank (incorporateddfgnence from
Exhibit 10.6 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:

Selling Agent Agreement between Organovo, Inc.taedSelling Agent (incorporated by reference froxhigit 10.3 to
the Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:

Form of Subscription Agreement, by and between @oga Holdings, Inc. and the investors in the offgr{incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’sr€nt Report on Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC oarbh 19, 2012
Form ¢-K)

Form of Registration Rights Agreement, by and betw@®rganovo Holdings, Inc. and the investors inatfiering
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to @@mpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, as filedwtiie SEC on
March 19, 2012

Escrow Agreement, by and among Organovo, Inc.Ptheement Agent and Signature Bank (incorporatecfayence
from Exhibit 10.51 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:

Extension to Escrow Agreement (incorporated byregfee from Exhibit 10.5(iii) to the Company’s Curt&keport on
Form &K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:

Joinder by Organovo Holdings, Inc. to PlacementrogeAgreement (incorporated by reference from EixHiB.4(ii) to
the Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:

Joinder by Organovo Holdings, Inc. to Escrow Agreatr(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10)36ithe
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:

Placement Agent Agreement between Organovo, Irtttta Placement Agent (incorporated by referenme fExhibit
10.4(i) to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:

Extension to Placement Agent Agreement (incorpdratereference from Exhibit 10.4(iii) to the ComganCurrent
Report on Form-K, as filed with the SEC on March 19, 20:

Split-Off Agreement, by and among Organovo Holdijrgs., Organovo Split Corp., Deborah Lovig and @ar@oker
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.9 to @@mpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, as filedwiite SEC on
February 13, 201z
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Exhibit No.

10.13

10.14

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

Description

General Release Agreement by and among Organowirtgs| Inc., Organovo Split Corp., Deborah Lovigl dames Coker
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.10 te @ompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, as filethvwilie SEC on
February 13, 201z

Form of Share Cancellation Agreement and Releaserfiorated by reference from Exhibit 10.11 to@wenpany’s Current
Report on Form-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Offer Letter between Barry D. Michaels and Organdwo. (incorporated by reference from Exhibit td the Company’s
Current Report on Formr-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Offer Letter between Sharon Collins Presnell anga@ovo, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Extii.13 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Organovo, Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (incogied by reference from Exhibit 10.14 to the Compm@urrent Report
on Form &K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Organovo Holdings, Inc. 2012 Equity Incentive P{anrtorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.15 te @ompanys Curren
Report on Form-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the 2B#jRity Incentive Plan (incorporated by referermoarf Exhibit 10.16
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporatedrbference from Exhibit 10.17 to the Compan€urrent Report on Foi
8-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Memorandum of Understanding between Organovo,dnd.Robert Baltera, Jr. (incorporated by referdrara Exhibit
10.18 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

Scientific Advisory Board Consulting Agreement, ethtas of March 17, 2008, by and between Organowo and Glenn
Prestwich, Ph.D. (incorporated by reference frorhikik 10.19 to the Company’s Current Report on F8&Fig, as filed with
the SEC on February 13, 201

Scientific Advisory Board Consulting Agreement, ethtas of March 17, 2008, by and between Organowo and David
Mooney, Ph.D. (incorporated by reference from EitHib.20 to the Company’s Current Report on Fori, &s filed with
the SEC on February 13, 201

Scientific Advisory Board Consulting Agreement,ethtis of April 14, 2008, by and between Organavo, &and Gordana
Vunjak-Novakovic (incorporated by reference fromhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Current Report on F8Fig, as filed
with the SEC on February 13, 201

Scientific Advisory Board Consulting Agreement, ethas of June 30, 2008, by and between Organowoaim K. Craig
Kent, M.D. (incorporated by reference from Exhibt22 to the Company’s Current Report on Form &<filed with the
SEC on February 13, 201

License Agreement dated as of March 24, 2009, bybatween Organovo, Inc. and the Curators of thigedsity of
Missouri, **** (incorporated by reference from ExXdii 10.23 to the Company’s Current Report on ForKy, &s filed with
the SEC on May 11, 201

License Agreement dated as of March 12, 2010 bybahdeen the Company and the University of Missduitk
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.24 te @ompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, as filethwlhe SEC on
May 11, 2012,

License Agreement dated as of May 2, 2011, by ataden the Company and Clemson University Resdarahdation,
**x% (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.26 the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, afivith the SEC on
May 11, 2012



Table of Contents

Exhibit No. Description

10.29 3D Bio-Printer Development Program Agreement, datedf March 3, 2011, by and between Invetech Riy(Ilnvetech”)
and Organovo Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by refesefrom Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Current ®&epn Form 8-
K/A, as filed with the SEC on March 30, 2012) **

10.30+ Executive Employment Agreement, dated Februar08&2, by and between Keith Murphy and Organova, Inc
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K, as filedwiiie SEC on March
1, 2012)

10.31+ Form of Executive Restricted Stock Unit Grant Netimder the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan. (incorpetdiy reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on August 9, 20:

10.32+ Forms of Performance Based Restricted Stock Gratit&land Performance Based Restricted Stock Ugrieément under

the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated byrefice from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Curreep&t on Form 8-K,
as filed with the SEC on August 9, 20:

10.33+ Form of Executive Incentive Award Agreement undier 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by nerfiee from Exhibi
10.3 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K, as filed with the SEC on August 9, 20:

16.1 Letter re change in certifying accountant (incogted by reference from Exhibit 10.25 to the Compa@urrent Report on
Form &K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 2(

21.1 Subsidiaries of Organovo Holdings, Inc. (incorpedaby reference from Exhibit 10.25 to the Compa@Usrent Report on
Form &K, as filed with the SEC on February 13, 20

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*

24.1 Power of Attorney (included on signature page logte

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Requirechtler Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secumitiehanges Act of
1934, as amended

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Requirechder Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secuitiehange Act of
1934, as amended

32.1 Certifications Required Under Rule 13a-14(b) of $eeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,@t8 tJ.S.C. Section
1350.*

101t Interactive Data File

* Filed herewitt

+ Designates management contracts and compensasios.

**x*x  This Exhibit has been filed separately withetSecretary of the Securities and Exchange Conwnisgithout the redaction pursuant to a
Confidential Treatment Request under Rule-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amgr

t XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language)rimfation included herewith is furnished and natdibr a part of a registration
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sectioms 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendedeemed not filed for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act 8418s amended, and otherwise is not subjecthdityaunder those section



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegjion Statement No. 333-163670 on Form S-8,iakinendment No. 1 to Registration
Statement No. 333-182101 on Form S-1 of our regatied May 24, 2013, relating to the consolidatadrftial statements of Organovo
Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiary, appearing in thiangition Report on Form 10-K, for the three morghded March 31, 2013 and for the period
from Inception (April 19, 2007) through March 3113.

/sl Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C.

San Diego, California
May 24, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Keith Murphy, Chief Executive Officer and Presid of Organovo Holdings, Inc., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this transition report on Foi®aKLof Organovo Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated findistédements, and other financial information iied in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloning, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psint based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportirttgat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alndave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting

Dated: May 24, 2013 /sl Keith Murphy

Keith Murphy
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Barry D. Michaels, Chief Financial Officer of @anovo Holdings, Inc., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this transition report on Foi®aKLof Organovo Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated findistédements, and other financial information iied in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloning, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentaisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, tregistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alndave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting

Dated: May 24, 2013 /sl Barry D. Michael:
Barry D. Michaels
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Transition Report on FormKLOf Organovo Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) fdret three months ended
March 31, 2013, as filed with the Securities andHange Commission (the “Report”), Keith Murphy, €Htxecutive Officer and President of
the Company, and Barry D. Michaels, Chief Finan@cer of the Company, do hereby certify, pursuanl8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@dt of 2002, that:

» The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; anc
e The information in the Report fairly presents, inaaterial respects, the financial condition aaduits of operations of the
Company.
Date: May 24, 2013

/sl Keith Murphy

Keith Murphy

Chief Executive Officer and President (principal
executive officer’

/sl Barry D. Michael:
Barry D. Michaels

Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer’

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to Organovoiligdd Inc. and will be retained by
Organovo Holdings, Inc. and furnished to the S¢imsriand Exchange Commission or its staff uponesju

This certification accompanies the Transition FA®AK to which it relates, is not deemed filed witie Securities and Exchange
Commission, and is not to be incorporated by refeganto any filing of Organovo Holdings, Inc. undlee Securities Act of 1933, as ament
or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amefbdther made before or after the date of the Tiiand=orm 10-K), irrespective of any
general incorporation language contained in suatyfi



